
64th

2024



JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

CONTENTS

COMPANY’S PROFILE ................................................................  2

             Pages

VISION STATEMENT ....................................................................3

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (English &      ) ......4

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS (English &      ) ..16

KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA .......................................31

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING ..................................................32

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

REVIEW REPORT .........................................................................39

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW (English &      )  ........................................13

AUDITORS’ REPORT....................................................................40

   WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE............. 36

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ....................................45

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS...............................49

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME .........................................................46

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS .................................................48

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY.....................................47

PROXY FORM



JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MR. AHMAD KULI KHAN KHATTAK Chairman

LT. GEN. (RETD.) ALI KULI KHAN KHATTAK Chief Executive

MRS. SHAHNAZ SAJJAD AHMAD

DR. SHAHIN KULI KHAN KHATTAK

MRS. ZENAB ADNAN AURANGZEB

MAJ. GEN. (RETD) SAEED AHMED WAHLA

COL. (RETD) SYED YUNUS ALI RAZA

AUDIT COMMITTEE MAJ. GEN. (RETD) SAEED AHMED WAHLA Chairman

MR. AHMAD KULI KHAN KHATTAK Member

COL. (RETD) SYED YUNUS ALI RAZA Member

HUMAN RESOURCE & COL. (RETD) SYED YUNUS ALI RAZA Chairman

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE LT. GEN. (RETD.) ALI KULI KHAN KHATTAK Chief Executive / 
Member

MR. AHMAD KULI KHAN KHATTAK Member

MRS. SHAHNAZ SAJJAD AHMAD Member

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER MR. AMIN-UR-RASHEED

 B. Com. (Hons.) FICS

Sr. Gen. Manager Finance & Corporate Affairs

COMPANY SECRETARY MR. ABID RAZA, M.(Accounting & Finance), APFA

AUDITORS SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO., Chartered Accountants

BANKERS NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN

THE BANK OF KHYBER

BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

PAK OMAN INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD.

MEEZAN BANK LIMITED

HABIB METROPOLITAN BANK LTD.

LEGAL ADVISOR HASSAN & HASSAN (ADVOCATES)

PAAF BUILDING, 7 D, KASHMIR ROAD, LAHORE

TAX CONSULTANTS M. NAWAZ KHAN & CO.

GROUND FLOOR, FARRAH CENTRE, 2-MOZZANG ROAD,

LAHORE

REGISTRARS & VISION CONSULTING LIMITED

SHARES REGISTRATION OFFICE 5-C, LDA FLATS, 1ST FLOOR, LAWRENCE 

ROAD, LAHORE

TEL. 042-36283096-97, FAX. 042-36312550

EMAIL: info@vcl.com.pk

REGISTERED OFFICE & MILLS HABIBABAD, KOHAT (KPK)

TEL. 0922 - 862161 - 862163
FAX. 0922 - 510474
E-MAIL: janana@brain.net.pk, janana.textile@gmail.com

WEB SITE: www.jdm.com.pk



3 JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



4

NOTICE OF 64TH  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that 64th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company will be held on 
Saturday the 26th October 2024 at 11:00 A.M. at registered office of the Company, Habibabad, 
Kohat, to transact the following business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

 

1. To confirm the minutes of

  

the last

 

Annual

 

General Meeting held on

 

23rd

 

October 2023.

 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the annual

 

audited

 

Financial Statements of the company 

 

together 
with the Chairman’s Review

 

Report and the

 

Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon

 

for the year 
ended 30th

 

June 2024.

 

As required under section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act”), Financial Statements 
of the Company has been uploaded on the website of the Company, which can be downloaded 
from the following link / QR code

 
 

Weblink

 

QR enabled Code

 

https://jdm.com.pk/Products/Gallery/invinfdocen386.pdf
 

 

 
 

3. To appoint  statutory Auditors for the financial year 2024-25  and to fix their remuneration. The 
retiring Auditors M/s shineWing, Hameed Chaudhri and Co.,  Chartered Accountants,  Lahore 
being eligible have consented and offered themselves for re-appointment.  

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

 
4. To

 
consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Special Resolutions with or 

without modification(s):

 
To ratify and approve transactions entered into by the Company and the related parties in 
its ordinary course of business by passing the following Special Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT the transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated 
companies/ related parties during the year ended June 30, 2024, (as disclosed in the note 44 of 
the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2024) be and

 

are hereby ratified, confirmed 
and approved.”

 
“RESOLVED THAT

 

the Chief Executive Officer, and the Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company be and are hereby authorized jointly to approve all the transactions carried out and to 
be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies/ related parties during the 
year ending June 30, 2025

 

and in this connection the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief 
Financial Officer jointly be and is hereby also authorized to take any and all necessary actions 
and sign/execute any and all such documents as may be required in this regard on behalf of the 
Company.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT:
i. The Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Authorized Officers”) be and are hereby jointly authorized to complete all the necessary legal 
and corporate formalities pertaining to this resolution. 
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ii. The Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary, be and are also hereby jointly 
authorized to take any further  modifications/amendments/corrections at a later stage if pointed 
out by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (The Commission) and to take 
such other steps, execute such other documents and make necessary corporate and other filings 
as may be necessary or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolutions and 
all other matters incidental or ancillary thereto.”

 

A statement of material facts under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017 pertaining to the 
Special Business as stated above is annexed to this notice

 

of meeting

 

being sent to the Members.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS:

 
 

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

 

By order of the Board 

 

ABID RAZA
Company Secretary

Kohat    
Dated: 4th

 October 2024   
    
NOTES:

 

1. The register of members of the Company will remain closed from October 19, 2024
 

to October 
26,

 
2024

 
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order by the  Company’s Shares Registrar, 

M/s. Vision Consulting Limited, 5-C LDA Flats, 1st Floor, Lawrence Road, Lahore by the close 
of business hours (till 5:00 pm) on October 18, 2024

 

will be considered in time for registration in 
the name of the transferees, and be eligible for the purpose of attending and voting at the

 

AGM.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member of the 
Company as a proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. Proxy Form duly completed must be 
deposited at the registered office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time of meeting. 
Attested copies of the CNIC or the Passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall be 
furnished along with the proxy form. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power 
of attorney with specimen signature shall be furnished along with the proxy form.

 
3. Any individual beneficial owner having an account or sub-account with the Central Depository 

Company (“CDC”), is entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must provide his/her "CNIC" or 
Passport to prove his/her identity, and in case of proxy must enclose an attested copy of his/her 
CNIC. Representatives of the corporate entities should provide attested copies of board of 
directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signatures required for the purpose and all
such documents as are required under Circular No.1 dated 26th January 2000 issued by the 
Securities Exchange and Commission of Pakistan for the purpose.

4. Pursuant to provisions of section 134 of the Act, if the Company receives consent from members 
holding aggregate 10% or more shareholding, residing in geographical location to participate in 
the meeting through video conference at least Seven (7) days prior to the date of meeting, the 
Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility 
in that city. 

 

5. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide Circular No. 4 of 2021 dated 
February 15, 2021, has advised to provide participation of the members through electronic 
means.  Members interested to participate in the AGM

 

are requested to email their name, Folio 
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Number, Number of shares held in their name, Cell Number, CNIC Number (along with valid 
copy of both sides of CNIC) with subject “Registration for Participation in AGM” at 
“janana.textile@gmail.com”. Video link and login credentials shall be shared with only those 
members whose emails, containing all the required particulars, are received by the close of 
business hours (till 5:00 pm) on October

 

24, 2024.

 

6. ELECTRONIC VOTING AND POSTAL BALLOT

 
 

It is hereby notified that pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 and its 
amendments notified vide SRO 2192(1)/2022 dated December 5, 2022, members will be allowed to 
exercise their right to vote for the special business (es) in the meeting, in accordance with the conditions 
mentioned in the aforesaid regulations. The Company shall provide its members with the following 
options for voting:

 

i. E-VOTING PROCEDURE
 

 

a. Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those  members of the Company 
who have their valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail addresses available in the register of 
members of the Company by the close of business on October  18, 2024.  

 
b. The web address, login details, and password, will be communicated to members via email. The 

security codes will be communicated to members through SMS from the web portal of Vision 
Consulting

 
Ltd. (being the e-voting service provider). 

 
 c. Identity of the Members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated through 

electronic signature or authentication for login.

 
 d. Members shall cast vote online at any time from October

 

23, 2024, 9:00 a.m. (PST) to October 25, 
2024

 

till 5:00 p.m. (PST). Voting shall close on October 25, 2024, at 5:00 p.m. Once the vote on the 
resolution is cast by a Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

 ii. POSTAL BALLOT VOTING PROCEDURE

 
a. Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot. For convenience of the members, 

Ballot Paper will be available on the Company’s website www.jdm.com.pk

 

within stipulated time to 
download.

 
 

b. The members must ensure that the duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with a copy of 
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post 
at the Company’s registered address, Habibabad, Kohat, or email at janana.textile@gmail.com one 
day before the AGM, i.e., on October 25, 2024

 

before 05:00 pm. A postal ballot received after this 
time/date shall not be considered for voting. The signature on the Ballot Paper shall match with 
signature on the CNIC.

7. Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address to the Company’s Share 
Registrar.

8. To comply with requirement of section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 19 of the 
Companies (General Provision and Forms) Regulations, 2018, all CDC and physical shareholders are 
requested to provide their email address and cell phone number incorporated/updated in their physical 
folio or CDC account

9. Members are informed that, in accordance with the SECP's S.R.O. 389(i)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, and 
the Companies Act, 2017, the company will distribute its annual audited financial statements via email to 
members who have provided their email addresses

 

to the Company. The audited financial statements 
can also

 

download from the QR enable Code. However, if a request has been made

 

by a member, the 
Company shall send hard copy of complete

 

financial statements, at his registered address, within one 
week

 

of request.
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10. The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 and the notice 
of Annual General Meeting have

 
also been posted and are made available on the Company’s 

website www.jdm.com.pk
 

and can be downloaded from the website.
  

11. Members are requested to replace their physical shares in Book-entry form and get their Names registered 
with the CDC, as early as possible, in compliance with the provisions of Section 72 (2) of the Companies 
Act, 2017. 

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 REGARDING 
THE SPECIAL BUSINESS

  

This statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special business to be transacted at the 
Annual General Meeting of the Company

 
to be held on 26th

 
October 2024.

 
Item No. 04 of the Agenda: Transactions with Related Parties

 
i. The transactions carried out with associated companies during the year ended June 30, 2024 to 

be passed as a Special Resolution. The transactions carried out in normal course of business with 
associated companies (Related parties) were approved by the Board as recommended by the 
Audit Committee on quarterly basis.

 
Since the majority of Directors were interested in this/these transactions(s) due to their common 
directorship and holding of shares in the associated companies, therefore these transactions have 
to be approved by the members in the General Meeting.

 
In view of the above, the transactions conducted during the financial year ended June 30, 2024
with associated companies and related parties as shown in relevant notes of the Audited 
Financial Statements are being placed before the members for their consideration, confirmation 
and approval. 

 

The Directors are interested in the Resolutions

 

to the extent of their common directorship and 
their shareholding in the associated companies.

The following Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their relation, common 
directorship and their shareholding in the Associated Companies:

 

Approval of the members is, therefore sought in order to comply with the requirements of 
Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017.

ii. Authorization of the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer jointly for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 
30, 2025 to be passed as a Special Resolution. 

 

The Company would be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 
of business. Majority of the Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common 
directorship and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with 
associated companies have to be approved by the members. 

 

The shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer jointly to 
approve transactions carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with 
associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2025.

 
1. Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
2. Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak
3. Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad
4. Dr. Shahin Kuli Khan Khattak
5. Mrs. Zenab Adnan Aurangzeb
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

I am pleased to present the review for the year ended June 30, 2024, highlighting the 

Company’s performance and role of the Board of Directors (the Board) of Janana De 

Malucho Textile Mills Ltd. in guiding the management to carry out its responsibility for 

the benefit of all its stakeholders.

 

REVIEW OF BOARD’S PERFORMANCE

 

AND EFFECTIVENESS

  

The Board of Directors, entrusted with the Company's governance, provides visionary 

guidance to management

 

and ratifies all pivotal policies and strategies to optimize the 

organization's overall performance. Through quarterly convenings, the Board scrutinizes 

and approves financial and operational results, ensuring astute oversight. During the 

current financial
 

year 2023-2024, Four Board meetings and four Audit Committee 

meetings
 

have been held, underscoring the Board's commitment to rigorous self-

assessment and sub-committee evaluation. The Board's annual self-evaluation for 

2023-24 has been completed, yielding a satisfactory performance assessment against 

predetermined criteria. This exemplifies the Board's effective discharge of its fiduciary 

duties. Moreover, the Board has ensured unwavering compliance with regulatory 

requirements and embraced best-in-class corporate governance practices, embedding 

them into the Company's ethos to uphold the highest standards of professionalism and 

business integrity. 

To further fortify the organization, the Board has implemented a robust risk 

management framework, bolstered internal controls, and established a vigilant audit 

function. These measures guarantee that daily operations align with the Board's 

overarching strategy, fostering a culture of transparency, accountability, and excellence.

REVIEW OF PAKISTAN’S ECONOMY

  The current financial year has been exceptionally challenging for the textile industry, as 

it navigated a perfect storm of adverse macroeconomic conditions, including 

unprecedented interest rate hikes, skyrocketing inflation,

 

unprecedented increase in 

energy prices

 

and widespread political and social upheaval, which collectively stifled 

economic activity. However, looking ahead, I remain cautiously optimistic that the 

business environment will gradually improve, and we can expect a positive rebound in

results in next financial year. 

COMPANY’S BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Company, during the year ended 30 June, 2024, has achieved

 

a net turnover of Rs.

5,884.712

 

million

 

(30 June

 

2023:

 

Rs.

 

6,016.527million). There is a

 

decrease of 

Rs.131.815

 

million in the turnover as compared to the previous year. Further, the 

Company, in the year under report has incurred a loss before tax amounting Rs.536.751

million and a  loss for the year amounting  Rs . 467.584 million respectively, in comparison 
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with    loss  before  tax  of  Rs.  102.686 million  and loss for the year for Rs. 80.276 million 

respectively, in  the previous year.
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

I am delighted to extend, on behalf of the Board of Directors, our sincere gratitude and 

appreciation to our esteemed Shareholders and Bankers for their unwavering trust and 

confidence in the Board's stewardship and the Company's leadership. Furthermore, I 

would like to formally acknowledge and express my deepest appreciation to the Board 

of Directors for their invaluable guidance and contribution, to the Management for their 

strategic leadership, and to our dedicated workforce for their tireless efforts and 

unwavering commitment. 
 

Dated: September 21, 2024
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The directors of the Company are pleased to present their Annual Report, together with the

Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

The directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of sections 226-

227 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act .
 

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
 

The financial
 

highlights of the Company’s
 
for the year ended June 30, 2024

 
are as follows:

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The Company, during the year ended 30 June, 2024, has been able to achieve a net turnover 

of Rs.5,884.712 million as compared to Rs. 6,016.527  million in the last year. There is a 

decrease of Rs. 131.815 million in the turnover as compared to the last  year. Further, the 

Company, during the year under report has incurred a loss before tax amounting to 

Rs.536.751 million and loss for the year amounting Rs.467.584  million respectively, in 

comparison with the loss before tax of Rs.102.686 million and  loss for the year for Rs.80.276

million respectively, 
 

during 
 

the 
 

last
 
year.

  

The primary driver of loss is the substantial escalation in power and fuel costs, which surged 

to Rs. 1,155.904
 

million
 

in the current year, a significant increase from Rs.720.586
 

million in 

the previous year.
 

During
 

financial year
 

under report, the Govt. 
 
increased the gas prices 

multiple times.
 

The first major increase of Rs.1,100 to Rs.2,400 per MMBtu (i.e. by 118%) 

was from the month of November, 2023. A further increase of around 15% (from Rs.2,400 to 

Rs.2,750 per MMBtu) was done from the month of February, 2024. The magnitude of this 

increase (i.e. overall
 

increase of 150%) was so pronounced that it exceeded the Company's 

ability to absorb
 

this massive increase in cost, thereby exerting undue pressure on operating 

margins. Furthermore, the influx of cheaper imported yarn in the domestic market

Particulars
 

 
2024

  
2023

 

 
Rs.

 
in millions

 

Sales-net
 

5,884.712
 

6,016.527
 

Cost of sales (5,909.283)  (5,669.629)  

Gross (Loss) / Profit (24.571)  346.898  

(Loss) Profit from operations (190.092)  241.847  

Loss  before taxation  (536.751)  (102.686)   

Loss after taxation  (467.584)  (80.276)  

             ------  Rupees -----  

Loss per share  (67.61)  (11.61)  
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exacerbated the situation, intensifying competition and compressing profit margins. 

Additionally, elevated interest rates have had a deleterious impact on the Company's financial 

performance during the current fiscal year. These factors, beyond the control of management, 

have offset the positive impact of various performance initiatives implemented by the 

Company to enhance results, thereby contributing to the net loss.
 

To tackle the current challenges, the company is exploring various cost -saving initiatives, 

including the installation of a solar power plant, upgrading to newer and more efficient 

machinery, and optimizing labor costs. These measures are expected to significantly reduce 

energy expenses, facilitate a swift attainment of break-even, and ultimately drive the 

company towards sustainable profitability.
 

GENERAL ECONOMIC REVIEW   

Throughout financial Year 2024, the national economic environment remained characterized 

by pronounced uncertainty, stemming from elevated interest rates, heightened taxation, and 

pervasive economic and political instability. Furthermore, the textile sector has been 

disproportionately impacted by unprecedented energy cost escalation, rendering it 

increasingly challenging for industry to absorb. Collectively, these factors have significantly 

impeded Pakistan's economic trajectory. Consequently, it is imperative that the Government 

implements decisive measures and undertakes concerted initiatives to stabilize energy costs at 

a sustainable level, thereby ensuring the long-term viability and competitiveness of the 

industry.

FUTURE PROSPECTS 
The recent trajectory of the policy rate, as evidenced by its downward movement across the 

last two Monetary Policy Committee meetings, portends favorable economic landscape for 

the forthcoming financial year. This encouragin g trend is poised to catalyze economic 

expansion, mitigate financial constraints, and foster a more conducive business environment

However, the energy sector remains shrouded in uncertainty due to the absence of a clear and 

comprehensive policy framework from the Government. Notably, the textile industry, a vital 

contributor to Pakistan's foreign exchange earnings, continues to lag far behind regional 

peers.
 

We expect that the Government will promptly intervene to implement protective 

measures, specifically
 

restricting the import of yarn, in order to safeguard the viability and 

competitiveness of the domestic textile industry, thereby ensuring its long-term sustainability

Mean-while, our Company remains steadfast in its commitment to optimizing its product 

portfolio and implementing cost-efficiency measures to ensure sustainable performance 

outcomes.
 

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK 
 The Directors confirm compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the 

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 

Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the CCG Regulations) for the following matters:  
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1. The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its 

state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
 

2. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these 

financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 

judgments.

 
 

3. The Company is
 

maintaining
 

its proper books of accounts.
 

 

4. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable
 
in Pakistan, have been 

followed in preparation of these Financial Statements.
 

 

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented 

and monitored. The process of monitoring internal controls will continue as on-going 

process with objective to strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system. 

6. There are no doubts about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
 

 

7. There has been no material departure from the best practices contained
 

in
 

the CCG 

Regulations.
 

 

8. There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties levies and charges which are 

outstanding as at June 30, 2024, except for those disclosed in  the Financial Statements.  
 

9. No trades in the shares of the Company were carried-out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, 

Company Secretary or their spouses and minor children during the year ended 30 June, 

2024. 

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

The Directors of the Company were re-elected in Extraordinary General meeting of the 

Company held on May 20, 2023. The Composition of the Board is in compliance  with the 

requirements of the CCG Regulations. The Company encourages representation of 

independent and non-executive directors, as well as gender diversity on its Board.  

The current composition of the Board is as follows:  

Total number of directors
    

7 
 

  Male
   

4
 

Female
   

3
 

 Independent Directors
    

2
 

Non-executive Directors
    

4
 

Executive Directors
     

1
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BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board Audit Committee assists in

 
fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, primarily in 

reviewing and reporting financial and non-financial information to the share-holders, systems 

of internal control and risk management and the audit process. It has the autonomy to call for 

information from management and to consult directly with the external auditors or advisors 

as considered appropriate. The Chief Financial Officer regularly attends the Board Audit 

Committee meetings by invitation to present the accounts. After each meeting, the Chairman 

of the Committee reports to the Board.
 

The Committee met four (04) times during
 

the 

financial year 2023-24.
 

The names of Committee members are as follows:
 

1.
 

Maj. Gen. (Retd.) Saeed Ahmed Wahla
 

Chairman
 

Independent Director
 

2.
 

Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak
 

Member
 

Non-Executive Director
 

3. Col. (Retd.) Syed Yunus Ali Raza Member  Independent Director  

The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly, half-yearly and annual Financial Statements, 

besides the internal audit plan, material audit findings and recommendation of  the  Internal 

Audit Department. 

In addition to above meetings, Audit Committee met with the external auditors without Chief 

Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit (HIA). Audit Committee also met the 

head of internal audit and other Members of the internal audit function without the CFO and 

the external auditors being present. 

HR AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Committee meets to review and recommend all elements of the compensation, 

organization and employee development policies related  to the senior executives’ 

remuneration and to approve all matters related to the remunerations of the executive and 

directors. The CEO of the Company attended the Human Resource and Remuneration 

Committee meeting held during the year as member of the committee. The Committee met 

once during 2023-24.
 

The names of committee members are as follows:
 

1.
 

Col. (Retd.) Syed Yunus Ali Raza
 

Chairman
 

Independent Director
 

2.
 

Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
 

Member
 

Chief Executive/Member

3.
 

Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak
 

Member
 

Non-Executive Director
 

4. Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad Member Non-Executive Director
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES IN 2023-24

 

During the year 2023-24, four
 

(04) Board’s
 
meetings four

 
(04) Board Audit Committee 

meetings and
 

one (01) HR & Remuneration Committee (HR&R)
 
meetings were held. The 

number of meetings
 

attended by each director during the year is given here under:
 

Leave of absence was granted to directors who could not attend the Board’s  meetings due to 

their  busy  schedule and other  appointments. However, Mrs. Zenab Adnan Aurangzeb has not

attended the meetings, therefore, she has been marked as absent.
  

 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 

Pursuant to the CCG Regulations, the Board recognizes that it continually needs to monitor 

and improve its performance. This is achieved through the annual performance evaluation 
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and ongoing Board development activities. Apart from their mandatory job requirements, the 

performance of the Board and its Committees is evaluated annually along with the following 

parameters, both at individual and collective levels.
 

i.
 

Effectiveness in bringing in a mix of gender, talents, skills and diversified 
perspectives.

 

ii.
 

Integrity, credibility, trustworthiness and active participation of members.
 

iii.
 

Follow-up and review of annual targets set by the management.
 

iv.
 

Ability to provide guidance and direction to the Company.
 

v.
 

Ability to identify aspects of the organization’s performance requiring action.
 

vi.
 

Review of succession planning of management.
 

vii.
 

Ability to assess and understand the risk exposures of the Company.
 

viii.
 

Contribution and interest with regards to improving health safety and environment, 
employment and other policies and practices in the Company.

 

ix.
 

Safeguarding the Company against unnecessary litigation and reputational risk.
 

The overall performance of the Board measured on the basis of the above-mentioned 

parameters for the year was satisfactory. The Board members effectively bring the diversity 

to the Board and constitute a mix of independent and non-executive directors. The Board is 

also effective in formulating the corporate goals for the company.  

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 

Non-Executive Directors: 

Directors Fee was paid in line with the Boards’ approval and the Company has a formal 

policy in this regard in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the CCG Regulations. 

The Company does not pay remuneration to non-executive directors except the fee for 

attending the meetings.  

Executive Directors: 
The Company has two Executive Directors, i.e. the Chief Executive and a Director of the 

Company, who is working as Executive Director Public Relations (EDPR). Following are the 

details of remuneration paid to the two Executive Directors of the Company during the year:  

Particulars 

2024  2023  

Rs. in 000
 

Remuneration 
 

6,836
 

7,536
 

Bonus/Ex-gratia
 

0
 

434
 

Retirement benefits
 

528
 

528
 

Leave Salary
 

476
 

477
 

Other benefits
 

2,408
 

1,682
 

Total
 

10,248
 

10,657
 

Further information is given in note 43 and 44 of the notes to the financial statements.
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA (SIX YEARS SUMMARY):

Key operating and financial data of six years is annexed to the report.

 

PATTERN
 

OF SHAREHOLDING:
 

The statement of the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2024

 
and additional information 

thereabout is annexed
 

to the report. 
 

DIVIDENDS
 

The Board of Directors
 

recommended that no dividend shall be declared for the year ended 
June 30, 2024, as the Company has incurred loss during the year, and needs available 
financial resources

 
to ensure steady cash flows.

 

CONTRIBUTION OF OUR COMPANY TOWARDS GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL 

SECTOR:   

We wish to give hereunder our Company’s revenue contribution towards the Government, 
Semi Government sectors, banks and Social sector during the year ended 30 June, 2024.  

   
I. GOVERNMENT SECTOR (Rs. in Million)  

 Sales Tax paid 

Income Tax paid 
1,181.113  

64.862  

 Power & Fuel   1,155.904  

 Financial Institution/ Banks 349.590  
   

II. SOCIAL SECTOR  

 Employees/Workers’ salaries, Wages and other benefits  745.932  
The company is providing employment to 1,074 workers (1,074  families with an average of 8 

family members in KPK province) the employment cost of which shall now be about 

Rs.745.932 million per annum. The company also ensures  employment to disabled persons in 

compliance with the rules set out by the Government.  

 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

 
The Company takes into account social, environmental, and ethical concerns within the 

broader business landscape. We are dedicated to actively striving to take into account and 

harmonize the needs of all stakeholders, with a special focus on the
 
local community and our 

essential workforce. We firmly believe that education is a crucial driver of economic growth 

and poverty reduction. Pakistan urgently requires top-notch educational resources to 

empower and equip young individuals to reach their fullest potential. To support this cause, 

we annually contribute substantial sums to the “Waqf-e-Kuli Khan” Trust for educational 

scholarships. We are deeply committed to upholding the utmost standards in health, safety, 
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and environmental practices to safeguard the welfare of our employees and the well-being of 

the communities where we operate.
 

SUSTAINABILITY-RELATED RISKS:
 

Our company is committed to sustainability and recognizes the importance of Environmental, 
Social, and Governance (ESG) factors. To contribute to a more sustainable future, we've 
implemented green initiatives, renewable energy policies, and best operating practices. Our 
management has established specific, measurable ESG targets that align with our strategic 
objective of achieving greater

 
sustainable resilience and positive social impact.

 

We
 

have invested
 

in innovative, environmentally friendly technologies that support ethical 
production and consumption. While these sustainable activities may temporarily impact 
short-term profitability or margins, we believe they will ultimately enhance our business 
value through customer acquisition, retention, and a competitive edge. To ensure proactive 
risk management, we conduct a comprehensive analysis of both present and future risks, 
identifying specific areas of concern. 

Sustainability related risk & opportunities helps to identify and manage risks related to 
environmental, social, and governance (ESG) factors, which are increasingly important to 
investors, regulators, and consumers. Under the context of this approach, the Company is 
mainly exposed to the following sustainability risks.  

ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS: 
Pollution and Waste Management  

SOCIAL RISKS: 
Labor Practices, Human Rights, Health, and Safety.  

GOVERNANCE RISKS: 
Regulatory Compliance, Supply Chain Transparency  

Failure to comply with sustainability regulations can lead to significant short-term and 
long-term consequences. These include penalties, legal fees, and reputational damage, 
which can result in lost clients and business. Inadequate transparency and monitoring of 
sustainability policies may also erode investor confidence and limit access to funding.  
However, these risks also present opportunities. By adopting sustainable practices and 
increasing energy efficiency, companies can reduce costs and enhance their reputation. 
Adhering to Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) principles can provide a 
competitive advantage, boost investor confidence, reduce financial volatility, and ensure 
long-term profitability.

To effectively manage sustainability-related responsibilities, the Board has delegated 
additional authority to the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. This committee 
will monitor and review sustainability risks, opportunities, and initiatives and shall submit 
a report to the Board, every six months.

 

DIVERSITY, EQUITY & INCLUSION (DE&I):
 Our company is dedicated to fostering a workplace that is inclusive, equitable, and diverse, 

reflecting both our workforce and the communities we serve. We believe that (DE&I) is 
essential to our ethical and sustainable business practices and have developed a 
comprehensive strategy to increase gender and ethnic diversity at all levels of our 
organization.
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Maj. Gen. (Retd) Saeed Ahmed Wahla Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Director

       

Chief Executive Officer

 Dated: September 21, 2024

Gender Pay Gap: We are committed to ensuring that all employees are paid fairly and have 
equal opportunities for advancement, regardless of gender.

 

Mean Gap: The mean pay for men is equal to that of women
 

Median Gap:
 

The median pay for men is equal to that of women
 

Gender Diversity as a Strategic Priority:
 
We view gender diversity as a strategic asset that 

enhances decision-making and problem-solving, contributing to our competitive advantage. 
Our commitment to DE&I is reflected in our talent acquisition, engagement, and promotion 
strategies. We have created a culture of belonging and respect, ensuring that all employees 
feel valued and empowered.

  

Compliance and Accountability:
 

We adhere to all relevant laws and regulations regarding 
(DE&I) and conduct regular evaluations to ensure compliance. Our commitment to fairness 
and equality extends to all aspects of employment, including hiring, salary reviews, and 
career advancement.

 

Our Company is unwavering in its commitment to creating a diverse, equitable, and inclusive 
workplace. We believe that this is not only the right thing to do but also a strategic imperative 
for our long-term success. 

MATERIAL CHANGES  

There have been no material changes since June 30, 2024  to date of the report and the 
Company has not entered into any commitment during this period, which would hurt  the 
financial position of the Company. 

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS: 
The Company’s auditor’s M/s ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
H. M. House, 7 – Bank Square, Lahore retired and offered  themselves for reappointment. The 
Board of Directors of the Company as recommended by the Board Audit Committee 
recommends that the retiring auditors be re-appointed.  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
Your directors would like to express their gratitude for the dedication and hard work 
exhibited by the workforce, staff, and senior executives in attaining these outcomes, 
especially during these exceptionally challenging times. We also extend our heartfelt 
appreciation for the unwavering support provided by the financial institutions, as their help 
has been instrumental in sustaining our Company’s production  activities.   

On behalf of the Board of Directors
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 ------ Restated --------

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Spindles installed Nos. 98,224 101,320 101,320 100,200 64,704 64,704

Rotors installed Nos. 600 600 600 600 600 600

PRODUCTION Lbs. in million 12.927

          

14.340

          

17.636

       

14.406

      

11.037

      

13.092

      

Sales - Net Rs. in million 5,884.712 6,016.527 7,155.722 5,610.298 2,754.564 3,379.664

Gross (loss) / profit ----- " ----- (24.571) 346.898 598.779 775.052 259.259 264.771

(Loss) / profit from operations ----- " ----- (190.092) 241.847 402.765 594.674 163.708 138.124

(Loss) / profit  before Taxation ----- " ----- (536.751) (102.686) 189.742 434.368 (60.203) 41.272

Provision for Taxation ----- " ----- (69.167) (22.410) 19.906 161.264 41.307 34.976

(Loss) / profit after Taxation ----- " ----- (467.584) (80.276) 169.836 273.104 (101.510) 6.296

(Loss) / Earning  per share Rupees (67.61) (11.61) 30.85 57.08 (21.22) 1.32

Breakup Value per share ----- " ----- 872.79 949.72 957.47 733.60 680.92 672.41

Total Assets Rs. in million 8,873.741 9,636.386 10,039.725 5,275.592 5,052.315 4,682.062

Current Liabilities ----- " ----- (2,355.814) (2,295.847) (2,425.686) (1,385.856) (1,497.225) (1,204.241)

----- " ----- 6,517.927 7,340.539 7,614.039 3,889.736 3,555.090 3,477.821

REPRESENTED BY:

Share Capital Rs. in million 69.158 69.158 69.158 47.848 47.848 47.848

Reserves and

Un-appropriated Profit ----- " ----- 5,966.876 6,498.971 6,552.511 3,462.267 3,210.234 3,169.511

Equity ----- " ----- 6,036.034 6,568.129 6,621.669 3,510.115 3,258.082 3,217.359

Lease liabilities ----- " ----- 0.000 2.034 0.000 1.084 3.541 0.000

Long term finances ----- " ----- 0.624 138.691 263.616 3.567 0.000 0.000

Deferred Liabilities ----- " ----- 481.269 631.685 728.754 374.970 293.467 260.462

----- " ----- 6,517.927 7,340.539 7,614.039 3,889.736 3,555.090 3,477.821

PARTICULARS
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FORM 34

 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

 

(Section 227(2) and 449)

 
 
 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

 

1.   CUIN (Incorporation Number)

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

1

 

1

 

9

 

3

 

2.    Name of the Company

 

JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

 

3. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 

 

3

 

0

  

0

 

6

  

2

 

0

 

2

 

4

 
 

4.    No of 
shareholders

 
 

Shareholdings
  

Total shares held
     

1656
  

shareholding from 1 to 100 shares
  

45,548
 

     

650  shareholding from 101 to 500 shares   153,235  
     

158  shareholding from 501 to 1000 shares   116,366  
     

145  shareholding from 1001 to 5000   320,726  
     

27
  

shareholding from 5001 to 10000
  

196,899
 

     13
  

shareholding from 10001 to 15000
  

162,436
 

     3

  
shareholding from 20001 to 25000

  
72,200

 
     1

  

shareholding from 30001 to 35000

  

31,000

 
     

1

  

shareholding from 35001 to 40000

  

38,500

 
     

2

  

shareholding from 40001 to 45000

  

84,895

 
     

2

  

shareholding from 50001 to 55000

  

105,150

 
     

1

  

shareholding from 55001 to 60000

  

56,024

 
1 shareholding from 60001 to 65000 61,525
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1 shareholding from 850001 to 90000 88,932

1

  

shareholding from 900001 to 95000

  

91,000

 
     

1

  

shareholding from 100001 to 105000

  

100,413

 
     

1

  

shareholding from 130001 to 135000

  

134,062

 
     

1

  

shareholding from 160001 to 165000

  

160,754

 
     

1

  

shareholding from 295001 to 300000

  

300,000

 
     

1

  
shareholding from 341001 to 345000

  
341,000

 
     

1
  

shareholding from 475001 to 480000
  

478,444
 

     

1
  

shareholding from 485001 to 490000
  

486,192
 

     

1  shareholding from 840001 to 845000   843,245  
     

1  shareholding from 885001 to 890000   888,046  
     

1  shareholding from 1555001 to 1560000   1,559,230  
     

2672
  

Total
  

6,915,822
 

5. Categories of shareholders

  
share held

  
Percentage

 
 

 
 

 5.1 Directors, Chief Executive 
Officer, and their spouse and 
minor children. 

 

  
71,038

 
 

1.03

 

    
5.2. Associated Companies, 

undertakings and related 
parties.

 

 
3,731,008

 
 

53.95

 

    

5.2. Treasury Shares 

  

341,000

  

4.93

 
5.3 NIT & ICP 57,675 0.83
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5.5 Insurance Companies

 

328

  

0.00

 

    

5.6 Modarabas and Mutual 
Funds

 
 

799

  

0.01

 

    

5.7     Share holders holding 10%

      

Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd
  

2,031,291
  

29.37
 

Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd 
  

1,659,643
  

24.00
 

    

5.8     General Public 
     

a.  Local
  2,014,426   29.13  

b.  Foreign  NIL   NIL  
    

5.9   Others (to be specified)     
Other Companies  59,297   0.86  
Secretary to Govt. of KPK  143,806   2.08  
Deputy Administrator     
(Abandoned Properties) 

 1201   0.02  
Sheriar F. Irani Investment 
Trust Ltd. 

 
30  

 
0.00  

6.  Signature of
Secretary

 
 

 7. Name of Signatory
 

ABID RAZA
 

 8.     Designation
  

Company Secretary

 

 
9.     NIC Number

 
3

 

5

 

2

 

0

 

2

 

-

 

9

 

9

 

6

 

8

 

5

 

6

 

7

 

-

 

9

 

 

 
Day                  Month                           Year

10.    Date 3 0 0 6 2 0 2 4

 
5.4

Banking Financial 
Institutions.

Banks Development 
Financial Institutions, Non 

 
 

495,214
  
  7.16



JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

35

DETAILS OF PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS PER
 

REQUIREMENTS OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
 

 

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS                                       SHARES HELD
 

 

1.
 

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS & RELATED PARTIES:
 

M/S.BIBOJEE SERVICES (PVT) LTD.
 

2 031 291
M/S BANNU WOOLLEN MILLS LTD.

 , ,
1,659,643

M/S WAQF-E-KULI KHAN
 

40,074
 

2.
 

TREASURY SHARES:
                                                     

341,000
    

3. NIT & I.C.P: 

M/S. INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN  1,517
CDC-TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST  56,024
IDBP (ICP UNIT) 134

 

4. DIRECTORS, CEO & THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN:  
MR.  AHMAD KULI KHAN KHATTAK  Chairman  21,934
LT.GEN. (RETD) ALI KULI KHAN KHATTAK  Chief Executive  24,819
MRS.SHAHNAZ SAJJAD AHMED  Director  10,968
DR. SHAHEEN KULI KHAN KHATTAK Director  10,968
MRS. ZENAB ADNAN AURANGZEB Director  2,246
MAJ. GEN. (RETD) SAEED AHMED WAHLA  Director  3
COL. (RETD) SYED YUNUS ALI RAZA  Director            100

 
5. EXECUTIVES 627

 
6. 
 

OTHER
 

COMPANIES
 

59,297

  
7. 
 

BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS, 
 

 
NON-BANKING FINANCE, INSTITUTIONS, INSURANCE 

 
 

COMPANIES, MODARBAS & MUTUAL FUNDS      
 

496,341

 8.
 

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE:
 M/S.BIBOJEE SERVICES (PVT) LTD.

 
2,031,291

M/S BANNU WOOLLEN MILLS LTD.
 

1,659,643

 
 9. 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC & OTHERS

     
,,2 158 836
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company

 

JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

 

(THE COMPANY)

Year Ended

  

30TH

 

JUNE 2024

 

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Statements of 
Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations), in the following manner: 

 

1. Total number of directors is

 

Seven

 

as per following:

 

a. Male: 

     

4

 

b. Female: 
     

3
 

2. The composition of the Board of Directors (the Board)
 

is as follows: 
 

 

CATEGORY
 

 
NAMES

 

Independent Directors* Maj. Gen. (Retd) Saeed Ahmed Wahla  

Col. (Retd) Syed Yunus Ali Raza  

Non-executive Directors  

Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak  

Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad  Ahmad  
Dr. Shahin Kuli Khan Khattak  
Mrs. Zenab Adnan Aurangzeb   

Executive Director Lt. Gen. (Retd) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak  

Female Directors
 

Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad  
Dr. Shahin Kuli Khan Khattak

 
Mrs. Zenab Adnan Aurangzeb

 
* Fractional requirement for Independent Directors has not been rounded up as one 
and presently the Company has two Independent Directors. The BOD feels that two 
Independent Directors are sufcient to maintain independence at the present Board 
level in order

 

to accomplish its determined goals, therefore, the appointment of a 

third Independent Director is not warranted.

 
3. The directors have conrmed that none of them is serving as a director on 
more than seven

 

listed companies, including this Company (excluding the 
listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable). 

 4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that 
appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the 
Company along with its supporting policies and procedures. 

 5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate 
strategy and signicant policies of the Company. A complete record of 
particulars of signicant policies along with the dates on which they were 
approved or amended has been maintained by the company
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6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on 
relevant matters taken by the Board/or members of the company

 
as

provided under
 

the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) 
and the Regulations. 

 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his 
absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has 
complied with the

 
requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect 

to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board. 
 

8. The Board has
 

a formal policy and transparent procedures for 
remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and the Regulations. 

9. Four of our Directors have already acquired the requisite certication 
under Directors' Training Program (the Program), whereas, one Director, who 
was co-opted on 5th December 2023 has to acquire, the Directors training 
program certication within a period of one year from the date of her 
appointment as a Director on the Board i.e. by 4th December 2024.  

The remaining two Directors have not undertaken the requisite training 

program mainly due to their busy schedules. However, both the Directors will 

be joining the program whenever these are announced by the approved 

institutions at Lahore and Islamabad. 

10. The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial Ofcer 
(CFO), Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit, including their 
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and also complied 
with the requirements of the relevant Regulations.  

11.  CFO and Chief Executive Ofcer (CEO)  have duly endorsed the nancial 
Statements before approval of the Board.  

12. The Board has formed the following Committees comprising the  members 
mentioned

 
below: 

 

Audit Committee 
 

 a)
 

Maj. Gen. (Retd) Saeed Ahmed Wahla
 

Chairman
 

b)
 

Mr. Ahmad
 

Kuli Khan Khattak
   

Member
 c)

 
Col. (Retd) Syed Yunus Ali Raza

   
Member

 

Human Resource
 

and Remuneration Committee 
 

 a)
 

Col. (Retd) Syed Yunus Ali Raza
  

Chairman
 b)

 
Lt. Gen. (Retd) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak

 
CEO/Member
 c) Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Member

d) Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad Member
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13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid Committees have been 
determined, documented

 
and passed on to the Committees for ensuring 

compliance. 
 

14. The frequency of meetings of the Committees
 
was

 
as per following: 

 

a) Audit Committee     Quarterly  

b) HR and Remuneration Committee  Yearly  

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit department, its  ofcers 
possess requisite qualication and experience for the responsibilities  and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.  

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have conrmed that they have 
been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and are registered 
with the Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that  none  of the partners of the 
rm, their spouses and minor children  hold shares of the Company and that 
the Audit Firm and all its partners are in compliance with the International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of  ethics,  as adopted 
by the ICAP. 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been 
appointed to provide other services in addition to audit except in 
accordance with the Act and the Regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have conrmed that they have observed the 
IFAC’s

 
guidelines in this regard. 

 

18. We conrm that all other requirements of the Regulations 
Nos.3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with. 

Maj. Gen. (Retd) Saeed Ahmed Wahla
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LAHORE; SEPTEMBER 23, 2024 SHINEWING HAMEED  CHAUDHRI  &  CO.,

UDIN: CR202410104a0Y3f1xNk  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Audit Engagement Partner: Osman Hameed Chaudhri

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the

Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all

material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the

Company for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in

the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of

Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors

of JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED (the Company) for the year ended June

30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the

Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the

status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does

not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is

limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents

prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of

the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective

audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on

internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such

internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon

recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review

and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance

of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of

Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matters

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have audited the annexed financial statements of JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS

LIMITED (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024,

and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2024 and
of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.
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Following are the key audit matters:

S. 

No.

1.

   

-

-

-

-

-

-

2.
   

Contingencies

-

-

We assessed the appropriateness of management
assumptions applied in calculating the value of
stock-in-trade and validated the valuation by taking
following steps:

The value of stock-in-trade at the

reporting date aggregated Rs.1,293

million representing 81% of the

Company's total current assets. Stock-

in-trade at the reporting date mainly

included raw materials and finished

goods (note 10).

The valuation of finished goods at cost
has different components, which
includes judgment and assumptions in

relation to the allocation of labour and
other various overheads incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and conditions. Judgment has
also been exercised by the
management in determining the net
realisable value of finished goods.

We identified this as key audit matter
in our audit due to the judgment and

assumptions applied by the Company
in determining the cost and net
realisable value of stock-in-trade at the
reporting date.

As disclosed in note 30 to the

accompanying financial statements,
the Company has contingent liabilities
in respect of various matters, which
are pending adjudication before
respective authorities and courts of
law. This requires the management to
make assessments and judgments
with respect to likelihood and impact of
such litigations on the financial
statements of the Company.

The management has engaged
independent legal counsels on these
matters.

discussed legal cases with the internal legal
department of the Company to understand the
management’s view point, obtained and reviewed
the litigation documents to assess the facts and
circumstances;

obtained opinions from legal counsels dealing with
such cases in the form of confirmations;

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

assessed whether the Company's accounting policy
for inventory valuation is in line with the applicable
financial reporting standards;

attended inventory count at the year-end and
reconciled physical inventory with inventory lists
provided to ensure completeness of data;

assessed the management's determination of net
realisable value of inventories by performing tests

on sale prices secured by the Company for similar
items; and

performed net realisable value test to assess
whether cost of inventories exceeded its net
realisable value by detailed review of subsequent
sale invoices.

Inventory existence and valuation

tested reasonability of assumptions applied by the
management in allocation of labour and other
various overhead costs to inventories;

In response to this matter, we performed following
audit procedures:

assessed historical cost recorded in inventory
valuation by checking purchase invoices on sample
basis;
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S. 

No.

-

-

3.

   

-

-

-

-

-

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

Valuation of Investments

The details of contingencies along with
management’s assessments are
disclosed in said note to these
financial statements.

disclosures of legal exposures and provisions were
assessed for completeness and accuracy.

evaluated the possible outcome of these legal
cases in line with the requirements of IAS 37

(Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets); and

The assessment of provisioning
against such litigations is a complex

exercise and requires significant
judgments to determine the level of
certainty on these matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Refer notes 7 to the financial

statements.

The Company's investments in an
Associated Company having carrying
value of Rs.81.492 million as at the
reporting date. Investments in
Associated Company are measured
under equity method of accounting and
at the reporting date the recoverable
amount is estimated by an
independent Valuer to determine the

extent of impairment loss; carrying
amount of investments is adjusted
accordingly. 

The estimation of the recoverable
amount involves significant judgment,
including assumptions around the
current and future market conditions,
forecast cash flows and discount rates,
etc. 

In view of significant judgment
involved in the estimation of value in
use, we consider this as a key audit
matter.

evaluated the Valuer's competence, capability and 
objectivity and assessed the appropriateness of 
methodology adopted by the Valuer engaged by the 
management;

performed independently, a sensitivity analysis in 
consideration of the potential impact of reasonably 
possible upside or downside changes in key 
assumptions; and

assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made by 

the Company with regard to applicable accounting 
and reporting standards.

Our procedures in relation to assessment of
carrying values of investments in Associated
Company included the following:

assessed the appropriateness of management’s
accounting for investments in Associated Company.

understood and evaluated the process by which the 
cash flow forecasts were prepared by the Valuer, 
including confirming the mathematical accuracy of 
the underlying calculations;
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

●

●

●

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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●

●

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)

b)

c)

d)

LAHORE; SEPTEMBER 23, 2024 SHINEWING HAMEED  CHAUDHRI  &  CO.,

UDIN: AR202410104rAwMZO9el  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Osman
Hameed Chaudhri.

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purpose of the Company’s business; and

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

ASSETS Note 

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 7,185,322 7,592,697
Intangible assets 6 780 1,040
Investments in Associated Company 7 81,492 71,693
Loans to employees 8 900 1,236
Security deposits 14,598 14,346

7,283,092 7,681,012
Current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools 9 75,085 90,099
Stock-in-trade 10 1,293,722 1,465,380
Trade debts 11 4,574 62,405
Advances to employees 1,224 1,588
Advance payments 12 10,942 19,998
Trade deposits and prepayments 13 3,720 77,271
Due from an Associated Company 14 60 -

             

Other receivables 15 1,923 622
Income tax refundable, advance tax 

and tax deducted at source 187,027 197,372
Cash and bank balances 16 12,372 40,639

1,590,649 1,955,374

TOTAL ASSETS 8,873,741 9,636,386

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Authorised capital 17 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 18 69,158 69,158
Treasury shares 18.6 (3,410) (3,410)
Capital reserves:

- other capital reserves 19 23,803 23,803
- revaluation surplus on property, 

plant and equipment 20 5,007,712 5,110,134
Revenue reserves

- general reserve 371,530 371,530
- unappropriated profit 567,241 996,914

Shareholders' equity 6,036,034 6,568,129
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities 21 -

                

2,034
Long term finances 22 624 138,691
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 23 118,599 100,467
Deferred taxation 24 362,670 531,218

481,893 772,410
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 25 800,066 421,680
Contract liabilities 69,870 77,675
Unclaimed dividends 2,715 2,715
Accrued mark-up 76,387 1,017
Short term finances 26 1,171,942 1,556,639
Current portion of non current liabilities 27 160,084 159,723
Levies and income tax 28 73,559 75,207
Preference shares redemption account 29 1,191 1,191

2,355,814 2,295,847

Total liabilities 2,837,707 3,068,257
Contingencies and commitments 30

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,873,741 9,636,386

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 - - - Rupees in '000 - - -
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Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Note 

Restated

Sales 31 5,884,712 6,016,527

Cost of sales 32 5,909,283 5,669,629

Gross (loss) / profit (24,571) 346,898

Distribution cost 33 74,816 59,077

Administrative expenses 34 140,884 121,224

Other expenses 35 42,654 12,587

Other income 36 (92,833) (87,837)

165,521 105,051

(Loss) / profit from operations (190,092) 241,847

Finance cost 37 357,751 324,940

(547,843) (83,093)

Share of (loss) / profit from an Associated 

   Company - net 7 (11,482)

    

643

          
Impairment reversal / (loss) on investments 

in Associated Company 7 22,574 (20,236)

11,092 (19,593)

Loss before revenue taxes and income taxes (536,751) (102,686)

Minimum taxes-levy 38.1 73,559 72,023

Loss before income tax (610,310) (174,709)

Income taxes 38.2 (142,726)

  

(94,433)

    

Loss for the year (467,584) (80,276)

Other comprehensive income / (loss) 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

-  gain / (loss) on remeasurement of staff 

  retirement benefit obligation 23 1,485 5,832

-  impact of tax (431) (1,691)

1,054 4,141
- (deficit) / surplus arisen upon revaluation of 

  property, plant and equipment 20.2 (90,524) -

           

-  deferred taxation 20.2 26,252 -

           

(64,272) -

           

  - share of other comprehensive loss  

     of Associated Companies (28)

           

(773)

-  impact of tax 8

              

224

7 (20)

           

(549)

(63,238) 3,592

Total comprehensive loss (530,822) (76,684)

Loss per share - basic and diluted 39 (67.61) (11.61).

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

------- Rupees -------

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -
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Director
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Balance as at June 30, 2022 69,158
   

(3,410)
   

6,694
    

350
  

11,409
 

5,124,591
   

5,350
   

371,530
  

1,035,997
   

6,621,669
   

Total comprehensive loss  for 

   the year ended June 30, 2023:

- loss  for the year -

        

-

        

-

        

-

   

-

       

-

              

-

       

-

          

(80,276)

       

(80,276)

       

- other comprehensive income -

        

-

        

-

        

-

   

-

       

-

              

-

       

-

          

3,592

          

3,592

          

-

        

-

        

-

        

-

   

-

       

-

              

-

       

-

          

(76,684)

       

(76,684)

       

Transfer from revaluation surplus
on property, plant and equipment on

account of incremental 

depreciation for the year - 

(net of deferred taxation) -

        

-

        

-

        

-

   

-

       

(37,601)

       

-

       

-

          

37,601

        

-

              

Share of revaluation surplus on 

property, plant and equipment of 

Associated Company -

        

-

        

-

        

-

   

-

       

23,144

        

-

       

-

          

-

              

23,144

        

Balance as at June 30, 2023 69,158

   

(3,410)

   

6,694

    

350

  

11,409

 

5,110,134

   

5,350

   

371,530

  

996,914

      

6,568,129

   

Total comprehensive loss  for 

   the year ended June 30, 2024:

- loss  for the year -

        

-

        

-

        

-

   

-

       

-

              

-

       

-

          

(467,584)

     

(467,584)

     

- other comprehensive (loss) / income -

        

-

        

-

        

-

   

-

       

(64,272)

       

-

       

-

          

1,034

          

(63,238)

       

-

        

-

        

-

        

-

   

-

       

(64,272)

       

-

       

-

          

(466,550)

     

(530,822)

     

Transfer from revaluation surplus

on property, plant and equipment

(net of deferred taxation) 

- on account of incremental 

depreciation for the year -

        

-

        

-

        

-

   

-

       

(36,387)

       

-

       

-

          

36,387

        

-

              

- upon sale of revalued assets -

        

-

        

-

        

-

   

-

       

(490)

            

-

       

-

          

490

             

-

              

Share of revaluation surplus on 

property, plant and equipment of 

Associated Company -

        

-

        

-

        

-

   

-

       

(1,273)

         

-

       

-

          

-

              

(1,273)

         

69,158 (3,410) 6,694 350 11,409 5,007,712 5,350 371,530 567,241 6,036,034

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

----------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------------
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities Note

Loss for the year - before taxation and   
share of profit / (loss) of Associated Companies (547,843) (83,093)

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation on operating fixed assets 5.7 165,357 166,882

Depreciation on right of use assets 5.11 1,641 1,271

Amortisation of intangible assets 6 260 260

Provision for impairment of trade debts -

           

129

Loss / (gain)  on sale of operating fixed assets 5.80 38,618 (5,043)

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity (net) 19,617 1,505

Excess  workers' welfare fund provision - reversed -

           

(928)

Unclaimed payable balances of cotton and 

  store suppliers of prior years - written back 36 (81,194) (81,656)

Receivable balances of cotton and 

  store suppliers - written off 35 3,419 4,286

Debtors balances - written off 35 617 5,277

Letter of credit claims - written off -
           

2,895

Finance cost 349,590 319,982

(Loss) / profit before working capital changes (49,918) 331,767

Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spares and loose tools 15,014 28,312

Stock-in-trade 171,658 357,534

Trade debts 57,213 (58,204)

Loans and advances to employees 700 268

Advance payments 5,637 (1,271)

Trade deposits and prepayments 73,551 (1,395)

Other receivables (1,301) (4)

Due from an Associated Company (60) -

           

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 
  and contract liabilities 451,775 (283,408)

774,187 41,832

Cash generated from operations 724,269 373,599

Taxes paid (64,862) (82,477)

Net cash generated from operating activities 659,407 291,122

Cash flows from investing activities

Fixed capital expenditure - net (8,444) (87,787)

Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets 5.80 119,679 6,189

Intangible assets acquired -

           

(1,300)

Security deposits (252) -

           

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 110,983 (82,898)

Cash flows from financing activities

Lease liabilities (1,451) 2,382

Long term finances - net (138,289) (25,835)

Short term finances - net (384,697) 209,879

Finance cost paid (274,220) (371,180)

Net cash used in from financing activities (798,657) (184,754)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (28,267) 23,470

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 40,639 17,169

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 12,372 40,639

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

2.2 Accounting convention

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd. (JDM / the Company) was incorporated in

Pakistan as a Public Company in the year 1960 under the Companies Act, 1913

(now the Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock

Exchange Ltd. The Company is principally engaged in manufacture and sale of

yarn. The Company's mills and its registered office are located at Habibabad,

Kohat.

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments,

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s

accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017
(the Act) ; and 

Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except where otherwise specifically stated.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and
reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed.

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates. These financial
statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information has been rounded off to the nearest thousand of
Rupees unless otherwise stated.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the
Company’s financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application
of accounting policies are as follows:

JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD.
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-

-

- Provision for impairment of inventories - notes 4.4, 4.5, 9 and 10.

- Allowance for expected credit loss - note 4.6.

- Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories - note 4.8.

- Staff retirement benefits - gratuity - notes 4.10 and 23.

- Estimation of provisions - note 4.12.

- Estimation of contingent liabilities - notes 4.13 and 30.

-

3.

3.1

a)

 - 

 - 

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of
accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of
any items in the Company's financial statements. 

Useful lives, residual values and amortisation method of intangible assets -
notes 4.2 and 6.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES RESULTING FROM

AMENDMENTS IN STANDARDS DURING THE YEAR

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements
are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for following
amendments to accounting standards which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 01, 2023 (unless otherwise stated). The Company has
not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been
issued but is not yet effective:

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial

Statements and IFRS Practice

Statement 2

Effective: January 01, 2023

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2 - The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy
disclosures that are more useful by:

Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies; and

Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and

interpretations that are effective and have been adopted by the Company

Current income tax expense, provision for current tax and recognition of
deferred tax asset (for carried forward tax losses) - notes 4.14, 24 and 28.

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment. - notes 4.1 and 5.1.

The revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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b)

3.2

a)

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

b)

the amount of the liabilities that are part of the arrangements, breaking out the
amounts for which the suppliers have already received payment from the
finance providers, and stating where the liabilities sit on the balance sheet;

ranges of payment due dates; and

liquidity risk information.

IFRS 16 Leases Effective: January 01, 2024

Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments requires a seller

lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities arising from a leaseback in a way

that it does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of

use it retains. The new requirements do not prevent a seller-lessee from

recognising in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to the partial or full

termination of a lease. A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in

accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errors to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial

application. 

The adoption of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any 
material effect on the financial statement of the Company.

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the
approved accounting standards that are effective but are not relevant to the
Company and therefore, have not been presented here.

IAS 7 Statement of Cashflows and IFRS 7

Financial Instruments; Disclosures

Effective: January 01, 2024

Amendments in IAS 7 Statement of Cashflows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments;
Disclosures; Supplier Finance Arrangements, disclosure requirements to enhance
the transparency of supplier finance arrangements and their effects on a
company’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.

The amendments are supplement requirements already in IFRS Accounting
Standards and require a company to disclose:

Accounting Estimates and Errors
 IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Effective: January 01, 2023

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates
and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. The amendments
introduce a new definition for accounting estimates clarifying that they are
monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting
policies and accounting estimates by specifying that a Company develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The

amendments will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and

changes in accounting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first

annual reporting period in which the company applies the amendments.

The amendments have no impact on the Company's financial statements. 

the terms and conditions;

The following amendments with respect to the approved accounting standards, as

applicable in Pakistan, would be effective from the dates mentioned below. The

Company intends to adopt these new and amended standards and interpretations,

if applicable, when they become effective.

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and

interpretations that are not effective and have not been adopted by the

Company
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3.3

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

4.1 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(a) Owned assets

Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment other than freehold land, buildings on
freehold land, plant & machinery, generators and capital work-in-progress are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

Freehold land is stated at revalued amount whereas buildings on freehold land,
plant & machinery and generators are stated at revalued amounts less
accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss. Cost of some items
of plant & machinery consists of historical cost and exchange fluctuation effects
on foreign currency loans capitalised during prior years. Borrowing costs are also
capitalised for the period upto the date of commencement of commercial
production of the respective plant & machinery, acquired out of the proceeds of
such borrowings.

IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final

Taxes (the Guidance) issued by ICAP

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) issued the
aforementioned Guidance through Circular No. 07 / 2024 dated May 15, 2024. In
light of the said Guidance, as the minimum taxes and final taxes are not
calculated on the ‘taxable income’ as defined in IAS 12 (Income Taxes) but
calculated on turnover or other basis (as per relevant sections of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance); accordingly, minimum taxes and final taxes
should be accounted for under IAS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets) / IFRIC 21 (Levies) as levies (though these are charged under
tax law) and not under IAS 12 as income taxes. Based on the Guidance, the

minimum taxes under the Ordinance are hybrid taxes, which comprise of a
component within the scope of IAS 12 and a component within the scope of IFRIC
21. 

Accordingly, the impact has been incorporated in these financial statements

retrospectively in accordance with the requirement of International Accounting

Standard (IAS 8) – ‘Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and

Errors’. There has been no effect on the Statement of Financial Position, Earnings

per share and Statement of Changes in Equity as a result of this change.

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements are set out below. They are same as those applied in the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Effect on profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

Final taxes - levy -                     (73,559)              (73,559)              -                     (72,023)              (72,023)              

Loss before income tax (536,751)
            

(73,559)
              

(610,310)
            

(102,686)
            

(72,023)
              

(174,709)
            

Income tax expense (69,167)
              

(73,559)
              

(142,726)
            

(22,410)
              

(72,023)
              

(94,433)
              

 ---------------------------------- Rupees  ------------------------------------

As at June 30, 2024 As at June 30, 2023

Had there been 

no change in 

accounting 

policy

Impact of 

change in 

accounting 

policy

After change in 

accounting 

policy

Had there been 

no change in 

accounting 

policy

Impact of 

change in 

accounting 

policy

After change in 

accounting 

policy
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Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.

Revaluation

Depreciation

Disposal

Judgment and estimates

Depreciation is charged so as to write-off the cost or revalued amount of assets
(other than freehold land and capital work-in-progress) over their remaining useful
lives, using the reducing balance method at rates specified in note 5.1 to the
financial statements.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the

date the asset acquired or capitalised has become available for use. Depreciation

of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for

sale and the date that the asset is derecognised.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and

equipment are recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase

reverses a decrease previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, the

increase is first recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous

increases of the same asset are first recognised in other comprehensive income

to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases

are charged to profit or loss. 

Gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in other income in the statement of
profit or loss. In case of the sale or retirement of a revalued property, plant and
equipment, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the revaluation
surplus on property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated
profit.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed on a
regular basis. The effect of any change in estimates is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the
asset’s original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from the revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment to retained earnings.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

b) Right of use assets and related liabilities

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease based on whether the contract conveys the right to control the

use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Lease

terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different

terms and conditions. The extension and termination options are incorporated in

determination of lease term only when the Company is reasonably certain to

exercise these options.
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4.2 Intangible assets and amortisation thereon

4.3 Investments in Associated Company

Investments in Associated Company are accounted for by using equity basis of
accounting, under which the investments in Associated Company are initially
recognised at cost and the carrying amounts are increased or decreased to
recognise the Company's share of profit or loss of the Associated Company after
the date of acquisition. The Company's share of profit or loss of the Associated
Company is recognised in the Company's profit or loss. Distributions received
from Associated Company reduce the carrying amount of investments.
Adjustments to the carrying amounts are also made for changes in the Company's
proportionate interest in the Associated Company arising from changes in the
Associated Company's equity that have not been recognised in the Associated
Company's profit or loss. The Company's share of those changes is recognised
directly in equity of the Company.

Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software are capitalised as intangible
assets and stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is taken to
statement of profit or loss applying straight-line method to amortise the cost of
intangible assets over their estimated useful life. Rate of amortisation is stated in
note 6.2.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease

liabilities adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets are depreciated

on a straight line method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects

the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The carrying

amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any.

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the remaining

lease payments at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate

implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s

incremental borrowing rate. The Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as

the discount rate. During the current financial year, liabilities have been

discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rates ranging from

23.85% to 24.25% (2023: 18.85% to 23.85%). Lease payment includes fixed

payments with annual increments. The lease liabilities are subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest rate.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the
date at which the leased assets are available for use by the Company.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

4.4 Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

The carrying amount of investments is tested for impairment, by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sell) with its
carrying amount and loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
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value. The cost of inventory is based on moving average cost. Items in transit are
stated at cost accumulated upto the statement of financial position date. The
Company reviews the carrying amount of stores, spares and loose tools on a
regular basis and provision is made for identified obsolete and slow moving items.

4.5 Stock-in-trade

Basis of valuation are as follows:

Particulars Mode of valuation

Raw materials

- at mills -  At lower of annual average cost and net realisable value.

- in transit -  At cost accumulated to the reporting date.

Work-in-process -  At cost.

Finished goods -  At lower of cost and net realisable value.

Waste -  At net realisable value.

-

-

-

Judgments and estimates

4.6 Trade debts

Net realisable value signifies the selling price in the ordinary course of business

less cost of completion and cost necessary to be incurred to effect such sale.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade is determined based on
the management's assessment regarding their future usability.

Trade debts are initially recognised at original invoice amount, which is the fair
value of consideration to be received in future and subsequently measured at cost
less allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL). Carrying amounts of trade debts
and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date and allowance is made
for doubtful debts and receivables when collection of the amount is no longer
probable. Debts and receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical

experience and selling goods of similar nature. It could change significantly as a

result of changes in market conditions. A review is made periodically on

inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and declines in net realisable

value and an allowance is recorded against the inventory balances for any such

declines.

Cost in relation to work-in-process and finished goods consists of prime cost
and appropriate production overheads. Prime cost is allocated on the basis of
moving average cost.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at
cost. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash-in-hand and balances with banks.
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4.8 Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

The assets that are subject to depreciation are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication that the assets are impaired. If there is
an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and compared with its carrying amount.

4.9 Borrowings and borrowing costs

4.10 Staff retirement benefits 

(a) Defined benefit plan

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Company, during the financial year ended June 30, 2018, has introduced
defined contribution plan through Employees' Provident Fund for its eligible
employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 8.33% of their gross
salaries are made both by the employees and the Company.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

The Company operates an un-funded retirement gratuity scheme for its

eligible employees. Provision for gratuity is made annually to cover

obligation under the scheme in accordance with the actuarial

recommendations. Latest actuarial valuation was conducted on June 30, 2024

on the basis of the projected unit credit method by an independent Actuary.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. The Company
recognises the reversal immediately in the statement of profit or loss, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount in accordance with the revaluation model.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income in the
period in which these occur and past-service costs are recognised immediately in
the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are
incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs,
if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

4.11 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of
the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services, whether or not billed
to the Company.
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4.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

4.13 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company

-

-

4.14 Taxation

Taxation comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current 

Deferred

The Company designate the amount calculated on taxable income using the
notified tax rate as an income tax within the scope of IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ and
recognise it as current income tax expense. Other taxes based on revenue and
final taxes are then recognised as a levy falling under the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS
37.

has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it
is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, if any, in which case the tax amounts are recognised directly in

other comprehensive income or equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year;

calculated using rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period. The calculation of current tax takes into account tax credits and

tax rebates, if any, and is inclusive of any adjustment to income tax payable or

recoverable in respect of previous years.

The Company accounts for deferred taxation using the liability method on
temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liability is
recognised for taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be
utilised. 

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit or loss except for deferred tax
arising on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment, which is
charged to revaluation surplus.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
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4.15 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves

are recognised in the period in which these are approved.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Definition of default

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for

4.16 Financial instruments

a) Financial assets

Classification

i) amortised cost where the effective interest rate method is applied;

ii) fair value through profit or loss; and

iii) fair value through other comprehensive income.

Recognition and derecognition

Measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of
financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets are derecognised at the time
when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the
financial assets. All financial liabilities are derecognised at the time when they are
extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled, or expires. Any gains or losses on de-recognition of the financial assets
and financial liabilities are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Further, financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the
statement of profit or loss.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in
statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income (OCI).
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- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- 

internal credit risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the Company).

Irrespective of the above analysis, in case of trade debts, the Company considers
that default has occurred when a debt is more than 10 days past due, unless the
Company has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Impairment of financial assets

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:

- Trade debts

- Bank balances

Simplified approach for trade debts

- 

- 

Recognition of loss allowance

Write-off

b) Financial Liabilities

Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

The Company recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified
approach. The measurement of ECL reflects:

an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating
a range of possible outcomes;

The Company writes-off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. The assessment of no reasonable expectation of
recovery is based on unavailability of debtor’s sources of income or assets to
generate sufficient future cash flows to repay the amount.

reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement
activity. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off result in
impairment gains.

The Company assesses on a historical as well as forward-looking basis, the
expected credit loss (ECL) as associated with its trade debts. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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i) fair value through profit or loss; and

ii) other financial liabilities.

i) Fair value through profit or loss

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial

recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case

of other financial liabilities also include directly attributable transaction costs. The

subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as

follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities
held-for-trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being
at fair value through profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial
liability upon recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

ii) Other financial liabilities

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

4.17 Foreign currency transactions

4.18 Revenue recognition

Contract assets

Contract liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the
Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at the point in time when
the performance obligation is satisfied i.e. control of the goods is transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods.

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer
for which the Company has received consideration from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities, which are interest bearing, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss for the year, when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through effective interest rate amortisation process.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Pak Rupees using the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated in Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are taken to
statement of profit or loss.

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by
transferring goods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or
before payment is due.
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Others

Return on deposits is accounted for on 'accrual basis'.

4.19 Segment reporting

under the contract.

Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognised when right to
receive such dividend and bonus shares is established.

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On
the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a
single reportable segment; however, certain information about the Company’s
products, as required by the approved accounting standards, is presented in note
45 to these financial statements.

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2024 2023

Note

5.1 7,126,863 7,532,536

5.90 56,025 56,025

5.10 2,434 4,136

7,185,322 7,592,697

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

Capital work-in-progress

Operating fixed assets - tangible

Right of use assets

JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



62

5.1 Operating fixed assets - owned

As at June 30, 2022

Cost / revaluation 4,702,000 1,257 569,467 40,331 12,193 43,403 2,283,683 323,173 5,497 19,127 4,529 2,968 49,265 8,039 3,573 8,068,505

Accumulated 

depreciation -

           

178 -

        

-

      

-

      

-

      

291,594 101,245 2,870 8,569 2,228 2,007 27,841 2,985 2,994 442,511

Book value 4,702,000 1,079 569,467 40,331 12,193 43,403 1,992,089 221,928 2,627 10,558 2,301 961 21,424 5,054 579 7,625,994

Year ended

June 30, 2023:

Additions -

           

-

     

-

        

-

      

-

      

-

      

19,756 -

        

-

    

939 -

    

-

     

53,875 -

    

-

    

74,570

Disposals

Cost / Revaluation -

           

-

     

-

        

-

      

-

      

-

      

(4,470) -

        

-

    

-

      

-

    

-

     

(5,962) -

    

-

    

(10,432)

Depreciation -

           

-

     

-

        

-

      

-

      

-

      

3,651 -

        

-

    

-

      

-

    

-

     

5,635 -

    

-

    

9,286

Depreciation for 

the year -

           

54 28,473 2,017 610 2,170 100,380 22,193 131 529 115 288 9,496 253 173 166,882

Book value 4,702,000 1,025 540,994 38,314 11,583 41,233 1,910,646 199,735 2,496 10,968 2,186 673 65,476 4,801 406 7,532,536

Year ended 
June 30, 2024:

Additions -

           

-

     

-

        

-

      

-

      

-

      

-

           

-

        

-

    

270 -

    

171 8,067 -

    

-

    

8,508

Adjustment in 
depreciation due to
deficit in revaluation  -

           

-

     

-

        

-

      

-

      

-

      

137,218 (46,693) -

    

-

      

-

    

-

     

-

      

-

    

-

    

90,525

Disposals

Cost / revaluation -

           

-

     

-

        

-

      

-

      

-

      

(220,235) (4,687) -

    

-

      

-

    

-

     

(8,711) -

    

-

    

(233,633)

Depreciation -

           

-

     

-

        

-

      

-

      

-

      

72,067 2,501 -

    

-

      

-

    

-

     

766 -

    

-

    

75,334

Depreciation for 
the year -

           

51 27,050 1,916 579 2,062 98,709 20,595 125 559 109 236 13,005 240 121 165,357

Book value 4,702,000 974 513,944 36,398 11,004 39,171 1,526,551 223,647 2,371 10,679 2,077 608 52,593 4,561 285 7,126,863

As at June 30, 2023

Cost / revaluation 4,702,000 1,257 569,467 40,331 12,193 43,403 2,298,969 323,173 5,497 20,066 4,529 2,968 97,178 8,039 3,573 8,132,643

Accumulated 

depreciation -

           

232 28,473 2,017 610 2,170 388,323 123,438 3,001 9,098 2,343 2,295 31,702 3,238 3,167 600,107

Book value 4,702,000 1,025 540,994 38,314 11,583 41,233 1,910,646 199,735 2,496 10,968 2,186 673 65,476 4,801 406 7,532,536

As at June 30, 2024

Cost / revaluation 4,702,000 1,257 569,467 40,331 12,193 43,403 2,078,734 318,486 5,497 20,336 4,529 3,139 96,534 8,039 3,573 7,907,518

Accumulated 

depreciation -

           

283 55,523 3,933 1,189 4,232 552,183 94,839 3,126 9,657 2,452 2,531 43,941 3,478 3,288 780,655

Book value 4,702,000 974 513,944 36,398 11,004 39,171 1,526,551 223,647 2,371 10,679 2,077 608 52,593 4,561 285 7,126,863

Depreciation rate (%) 5 5 5 5 5 5 10 5 5 5 30 20 5 30

---------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ----------------------------------------------------

 Freehold 

land

Office 

& 

other 

equip-

ment

Vehic-

les

Plant &

machinery

Furnit-

ure and 

fixtures

Buildings on freehold land

Arms Total

Work-

shop 

equip-

ment

Genera-

tors

Roads, 

paths 

and 

culve-

rts

Secur-

ity & 

survei-

llance
Factory

Non-

factory

Particulars
Residential

Officers
Work-

ers

Comp-

uter 

equip-

ment 

and 

acces-

sories
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5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

2024 2023

Freehold land 487,580 487,580

Buildings on freehold land:

- factory 156,637 164,881

- non-factory 16,646 17,522

Residential:

- officers 694 731

- workers 17,197 18,102

Plant & machinery 1,165,329 1,387,346

Generators 157,808 175,112

2,001,891 2,251,274

5.6

Rupees 

in '000

Freehold land 3,996,700

Buildings on freehold land 532,317

Plant & machinery & Generators 1,543,141

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

Revaluation surplus on each class of assets, as a result of latest revaluation as
detailed in note 20.2, has been determined as follows:

Had the operating fixed assets been recognised under the cost model, the
carrying amounts of each revalued class of operating fixed assets would have
been as follows:

Freehold land represents 308,816 square meters of land situated at Habibabad,
Kohat out of which approximately 83,332 square meters represent covered area.

The land of Babri Cotton Mills Ltd. (BCM) valuing Rs.487.240 million is still under
the title of BCM. The management is in the process to transfer the said land in the
Company's name. BCM was merged with / into the Company effective February
15, 2022.

Based on the latest revaluation reports dated April 1, 2024 for plant & machinery
and generators and report dated June 30, 2022 for Freehold land and buildings on
freehold land the forced sale values of assets have been assessed as follows:

Cost / revaluation as at 

April 1 , 2024 2,295,022

 

318,488

     

2,613,510

 

Accumulated depreciation 

to April 1, 2024 458,261

    

135,799

     

594,060

     

Book value before 

revaluation adjustments

as at April 1, 2024 1,836,761
 

182,689
     

2,019,450
 

Revalued amounts 1,699,543
 

229,383
     

1,928,926
 

(137,218) 46,694 (90,524)
(Deficit) / revaluation 

surplus

Particulars
Plant & 

machinery

Generator

s
Total

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -
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5.7 Depreciation for the year has been 2024 2023
    apportioned as under:

Cost of sales 157,950 161,202

Administrative expenses 7,407 5,680

165,357 166,882

5.8 Disposal of operating fixed assets

5.8.1 The machinery sold during the year was in scrap condition.

5.9 Capital work-in-progress 2024 2023

Note
Advances paid to Peshawar 
Electric Supply Company Ltd. as  
 capital cost of new HT line 
 for extension of load of 
 the Company 43,107 43,107

Advances paid to Sui Northern Gas   
Pipelines Ltd. for laying of pipe line for 
rectification of low pressure problem 12,918 12,918

56,025 56,025

5.10 Right of use assets

Balance at beginning of the year 4,136 5,108

Additions during the year -

            

5,175

Impact of reassessment (61) (194)

Transfer to owned assets:

- cost -

            

(9,208)

- accumulated depreciation -

 

4,526

Depreciation charge for the year 5.11 (1,641) (1,271)

Book value at end of the year 2,434 4,136

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

2024

Plant & Machinery

Drawing machine 3,943

     

1,626

     

2,317

     

1,418

     

(899)

Cards 28,140

   

12,155

   

15,985

   

9,836

     

(6,149)

Unilap former 2,925

     

1,309

     

1,616

     

1,639

     

23

Combers 2,862

     

867

        

1,995

     

1,639

     

(356)

Combers 22,701

   

8,035

     

14,666

   

8,199

     

(6,467)

Ring Frames 26,101

   

9,548

     

16,553

   

9,836

     

(6,717)

Auto cone winder 36,508

   

10,618

   

25,890

   

16,392

   

(9,498)

Multi drum filter 773

        

80

           

693

        

820

        

127

Multi drum filter 2,507

     

278

        

2,229

     

820

        

(1,409)

Compact system 16,834

   
5,564

     
11,270

   
5,737

     
(5,533)

Compact system 45,410
   

14,163
   

31,247
   

17,623
   

(13,624)

Auto cone winder 31,531
   

7,824
     

23,707
   

34,425
   

10,718
220,235

 
72,067 148,168 108,384 (39,784)

Vehicle

Cherry Tigo 8 Pro 8,711
     

766
        

7,944
     

9,000
     

1,056

Generators 4,687     2,501     2,185     2,295     110

233,633 75,334   158,297 119,679 (38,618)

2023 10,432 9,286 1,146 6,189 5,043

Assets having net book value 

exceeding Rs 500,000 each 

Mr. Waqas Ahmad

M/s. Tuseef Brothers

------do-----

Sold through negotiation / 

insurance claim to

Gain / 

(loss)

------------ Rupees in '000 ------------

------do-----

------do-----

------do-----

------do-----

------do-----

------do-----

------do-----

------do-----

------do-----

M/s. IGI Insurance

Mr. Abdul Rauf 

Particulars Cost

Accumul

ated 

deprecia

tion

Book 

value

Sale pro-

ceeds



65

5.11 Depreciation for the year has been 2024 2023

apportioned as under:

Cost of sales 275 213

Administrative expenses 1,366 1,058

1,641 1,271

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Opening balance 1,040 -

                

Additions during the year -

            

1300

Less: amortisation charge for the year 260 260

Book value as at June 30 , 780 1,040

6.1

6.2

7. INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATED 2024 2023
 COMPANY - Quoted

Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd. (BWM) 

731,626 (2023: 731,626) ordinary shares of 
Rs.10 each - cost 7,697 7,697

Shareholding  held: 7.70% (2023: 7.70%)

Post acquisition profit and other comprehensive  
income brought forward including effect of  
items directly credited in equity by BWM 97,204 97,110

Share of revaluation surplus on 
  property, plant and equipment 199,445 200,718

(Loss) / profit for the year - net of taxation (11,482) 643

Share of other comprehensive 

  loss - net of taxation (20) (549)

292,844 305,619
Less: impairment loss 

     opening balance (233,926) (213,690)

     Reversal / (charge) for the year 22,574 (20,236)

     closing balance (211,352) (233,926)

81,492 71,693

7.1

7.2

7.3

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

The summary of financial information of BWM based on its audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 is as follows:

Although the Company has less than 20% voting rights in BWM as at June 30,
2023 and 2022, BWM has been treated as an Associated Company by virtue of
common directorships.

BWM was incorporated in Pakistan in the year 1960 as a Public Company and its
shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. It is principally engaged in
manufacture and sale of woollen yarn, cloth and blankets.

Market value of the Company's investments in BWM as at June 30, 2024 was
Rs.19.644 million (2023: Rs.16.374 million).

The Company, during the year ended June 30, 2023, acquired SARP ERP
Software costing Rs.1.300 million.

Amortisation is charged to income applying straight-line method at the rate of 20%
per annum.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -
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2024 2023

Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets 2,723,066

  

2,410,250

     

Current assets 1,168,196

  

1,231,653

     

3,891,262

  

3,641,903

     

Non-current liabilities 203,251

     

214,496

        

Current liabilities 554,968

     

583,776

        

758,219

     

798,272

        

Net assets 3,133,043

  

2,843,631

     

Reconciliation to carrying amount

Opening net assets 2,843,631

  

2,893,207

     

Profit / (loss) for the year 306,214

     

(343,161)

       

Other comprehensive income for the year (257)

           
287,743

        

Other adjustments* (16,545)
      

5,842
            

Closing net assets 3,133,043
  

2,843,631
     

2024 2023

Company's share percentage 

7.70% (2023: 7.70%)

Company's share 241,244     218,960        
Impairment loss and miscellaneous 

adjustments- net (159,752)    (147,267)       
Carrying amount of investment 81,492

       
71,693

          
Summarised statement of profit or loss

Sales 891,268
     

1,038,734
     

Profit / (loss) before taxation 300,889
     

(329,620)
       

Profit / (loss) after taxation 306,214
     

(343,161)
       7.4

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

* These mainly comprise of effect of share of revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

The value of investments in BWM as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 is
based on independent valuation carried-out by M/s Reanda Haroon Zakaria Aamir
Salman Rizwan, Chartered Accountants - a QCR rated firm, having office at 275,
Block H1, M.A. Johar Town, Lahore, engaged by the management. The Company
has been using the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method to calculate Value in
Use (VIU) under IAS 36 (Impairment of Assets). However, economic challenges,
such as inflation, currency devaluation and increased assets revaluation, have
necessitated a reassessment of the impairment assessment approach. Therefore,
keeping in view the requirements of IAS 36, a revised model, known as the Market
Value of Net Assets Approach has been adopted to calculate the VIU. This model
provides a more accurate reflection of the investments value, especially for capital-
intensive entities. This change in the VIU calculation method has led to reversal of
the impairment loss for the year ended June 30, 2024. This change in estimate
has been applied prospectively. These calculations assumed gross profit margin
of 28.80% (2023: 28.80%), and capital asset pricing model based discount rate of
27.27% (2023: 21.69%).
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8. LOANS TO EMPLOYEES - Secured 2024 2023
Note

Balance as at June 30, 8.1 1,638 2,463

Less: current portion grouped under current assets 738 1,227

900 1,236

8.1

9. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores - at mills 46,954 43,359

Spares 65,162 83,698

Loose tools 343 416

112,459 127,473

Provision for obsolete stores and spares (37,374) (37,374)

75,085 90,099   

10. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials:

- at mills 490,237 1,081,049

- in transit 321,743 57,790

 10.1 811,980 1,138,839

Work-in-process 145,594 165,325

Finished goods 10.1 336,148 161,216

1,293,722 1,465,380

10.1

11. TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured, 

considered good

Balance at the year-end 4,646 62,857

Less: allowance for expected 
credit loss 11.1 (72) (452)

4,574 62,405

11.1 Allowance for expected credit loss

Balance at beginning of the year 452 419

Charge for the year (57) 129

Balance written-off during the year (323) (96)

Balance at end of the year 72 452

These interest free loans to employees have been advanced for various purposes
and are recoverable in instalments which vary from case to case. These loans are
secured against the gratuity benefits payable to respective employees.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

Raw material and finished good inventories are pledged with National Bank of

Pakistan, The Bank of Khyber and Bank Alfalah Ltd., as security for short term

finance facilities (note 26).
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12. 2024 2023

considered good Note

Store suppliers 8,831 15,566

Others 2,111 4,432

10,942 19,998

13. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Letters of credit -

            

743

Prepayments 1,020 1,528

Security deposit 13.1 2,700 75,000

3,720 77,271

13.1

14. DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

15. 2024 2023

Note

Due from employees' provident fund 1,923 622

16. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash-in-hand 1,864 363

Cash at banks on:

- current accounts 5,763 12,761

- PLS security deposit account 16.1 498 270

- PLS accounts 16.1 3,168 26,295

- PLS account (employees' / staff 
gratuity fund account) 16.1 1,079 950

10,508 40,276

12,372 40,639

16.1

17. AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised share capital of the Company comprises of Rs.1 billion divided into
90,500,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each and 9,500,000 cumulative redeemable
preference shares of Rs.10 each.

Balance represents due from Gandhara Industries Ltd. on account of sharing of
expenses

The year end balance represents deposit with Bank Alfalah Ltd. (BAF) against
guarantee of similar amount issued by the bank in favor of Sui Northern Gas
Pipelines Ltd (SNGPL). Whereas, the preceding year's figure represents deposit
amounting Rs.75 million deposited with National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) against
guarantees of similar amount issued by the bank in favor SNGPL. The deposit
has been received back from NBP during the year ended June 30, 2024.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

OTHER RECEIVABLES

PLS accounts carry profit at the rates ranging from 18% to 20.50% (2023: 12.25%
to 19.50%) per annum.

ADVANCE PAYMENTS - Unsecured, 

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -
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18. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

18.1

18.2 Ordinary shares held by the Associated 2024 2023

 Companies and an Associate at the year-end:

Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd. 2,031,291 2,031,291

Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd. 1,659,643 1,659,643

Waqf-e-Kuli Khan 40,074 40,074

3,731,008 3,731,008

18.3

18.4

18.5

18.6

19. OTHER CAPITAL RESERVES 2024 2023

Note

Capital redemption reserve 6,694 6,694

Tax holiday reserve 350 350

Share premium reserve 19.1 11,409 11,409

Merger reserve 19.2 5,350 5,350

23,803 23,803

19.1

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carries no right to fixed
income.

The Company has no reserved shares for issuance under options and sale
contracts.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from
time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the
Company. All the shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual
assets.

Number of shares

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

These shares were allotted to the entitled shareholders of Babri Cotton Mills Ltd.
upon its merger with and into JDM.

This represent 341 thousand shares of Rs.10 each which were held by Babri
Cotton Mills Ltd. at the time of merger within / into Company.

This represents premium at the rate of Rs.10 per share received on 1,140,900

ordinary shares allotted during the financial year ended June 30, 2010.

2024 2023 2024 2023

1,640,900 1,640,900 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

fully paid in cash 16,409 16,409

2,130,544 2,130,544 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

issued to Financial Institutions
by conversion of loans and 

debentures 21,305 21,305

6,832 6,832 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 

issued by conversion of 

preference shares 68 68

1,006,518 1,006,518 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

issued as fully paid 
bonus shares 10,066 10,066

2,131,028 2,131,028 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
allotted for consideration otherwise

than in cash (note 18.1) 21,310 21,310

6,915,822 69,158 69,158

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

6,915,822

---- Numbers ----
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19.2

20. REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Net 2024 2023

Note
Revaluation surplus on the Company's

property, plant and equipment 20.2 4,808,267 4,909,416

Share of revaluation surplus on 

property, plant and equipment 

of an Associated Company 7 199,445 200,718

5,007,712 5,110,134

20.1

20.2

2024 2023

Note

Opening balance 5,193,291 5,246,250

Less: loss / deficit arisen on revaluation 

 carried-out during the year 5.4 (90,524) -
                Less: transferred to unappropriated profit 

         on account of:

 - incremental depreciation for the year (51,249) (52,959)

         - upon sale of revalued assets (692) -

                5,050,826 5,193,291

Less: deferred tax on:

- opening balance of surplus 283,875 299,233

      - loss / deficit arisen on revaluation 

carried-out during the year (26,252) -

                
- incremental depreciation for the year (14,862) (15,358)

- sale of revalued assets (202) -

                
242,559 283,875

Closing balance 4,808,267 4,909,416

The Company's management, as at April 1, 2024, has again revalued its plant &
machinery and generators. .These assets have been revalued on the basis of
depreciated fair market values. The revaluation exercise has been carried-out by
independent Valuers - Hamid Mukhtar & Co. (Pvt.) Ltd, Lahore The appraisal
resulted into a loss / deficit arisen on revaluation aggregating Rs.90.524 million
which has been debited to this account. The year-end balance has been arrived at
as follows:

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

This represents merger reserve arisen at the time of merger of BCM within / into
Company.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

The Company's management had revalued its freehold land on September 30,

1998, September 30, 2004, June 30, 2007, March 31, 2010, February 29, 2012,

December 31, 2015 and October 31, 2019. Buildings on freehold land, plant &

machinery and generators were revalued on September 30, 2004, June 30, 2007,

March 31, 2010, February 29, 2012, December 31, 2015, October 31, 2019 and

June 30, 2022. These fixed assets were revalued by Independent Valuers on the

basis of market value / depreciated market values and resulted in revaluation

surplus aggregating Rs.5.585 billion.

JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



71

21. LEASE LIABILITIES 2024 2023

Balance at beginning of the year 3,473 1,091

Additions during the year -

            

5,175

Impact of reassessment (62) (194)

Interest accrued 657 351

Repaid during the year (2,046) (2,950)

           

2,022 3,473

Current portion grouped under current liabilities (2,022) (1,439)

           

Balance at end of the year -

            

2,034

21.1

22. LONG TERM FINANCES - Secured 2024 2023

Note

First Habib Modaraba (FHM)

   - diminishing musharaka (DM I) 22.1 1,904 2,906

The Bank of Khyber (BoK)

   - demand finance - I 22.2 -
            

32,917

   - demand finance - II 22.3 -
            

5,565

Pak Oman Investment Company Ltd. (POIC)

   - term finance - I 22.5 66,667 133,333

   - term finance - II 22.6 80,000 100,000

Sindh Modaraba (SM)

   - diminishing musharaka (DM II) 22.7 10,115 22,254

158,686 296,975

Less: current portion grouped under current liabilities

 
-  FHM (DM I) 1,280 996

-  BoK (demand finance - I) -

            

32,917

-  BoK (demand finance - II) -

            

5,565

-  POIC (term finance - I) 66,667 66,667

-  POIC (term finance - II) 80,000 40,000

-  SM (DM II) 10,115 12,139

158,062 158,284

624 138,691

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

The future minimum lease payments to which the Company is committed under
the lease agreement will be due as follows:

Minimum lease payments 2,251 -
         

2,251 2,046 2,251 4,297

Less: finance cost allocated to 

future periods 229 -
         

229 607 217 824

Present value of minimum

lease payments 2,022 -         2,022 1,439 2,034 3,473

 - - - - - - - - - - - - -  Rupees in '000 - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Particulars

2024 2023

Upto 

one year

From 

one to 

three 

years

Total
Upto 

one year

From 
one to 
three 
years

Total
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22.1

22.2

22.3

22.4

22.5

22.6

BoK had transferred the BCM's exposure to the Company after the Court verdict
dated January 31, 2022 vide its letter bearing Ref. # BoK / RCCB / 2022 / 11997
dated April 16, 2022.

BoK had transferred the BCM's exposure to the Company after the Court verdict
dated January 31, 2022 vide its letter bearing Ref. # BoK / RCCB / 2022 / 11997
dated April 16, 2022.

These finances have been obtained against finance facility of Rs.100 million for
working capital requirements of the Company. The facility tenor is two years
including nine months grace period and is secured against first pari passu charge
over present and future fixed and current assets of the Company. The finance

facility carries profit at 3-months KIBOR + 2.35% per annum; the effective profit
rate during the year ranged from 22.59% to 25.26% (2023: 24.28% to 25.26%)
per annum. These finances are repayable in 5 equal quarterly instalments
commenced March, 2024.

These finances had been obtained by BCM for acquisition of local textile
machinery for BMR. These finances carried mark-up at the rate of 6-months
KIBOR + 2%; the effective mark-up rate charged by BoK during the year ranged
from 23.48% to 24.97 % (2023:17.48% to 19.07%) per annum. The company
during the year has repaid the said loan

These finances had been obtained by Babri Cotton Mills Ltd. (BCM - merged with
the Company with effect from February 04, 2022) to retire letters of credit
established for import of textile machinery for BMR. These finances carried mark-
up at the rate of 6-months KIBOR + 2%; the effective mark-up rate charged by
BoK during the year ranged from 23.48% to 24.97% (2023: 17.48% to 19.07%)
per annum. The Company during the year has repaid the said loan. 

This DM of Rs.5.068 million is utilised for purchase of a vehicle and is repayable in 

60 equal monthly instalments of Rs.107 thousand ending November, 2025. The

DM carries profit at the rate of 3-months KIBOR + 2.50% per annum; the effective

profit rates during the year ranged from 23.96% to 25.41% (2023: 17.66% to

24.58%)per annum. The finance facility is secured against registration of vehicle

in FHM's name.

The finances obtained from BoK, as detailed in notes 22.2 and 22.3, were secured 
against first joint pari passu charge on fixed assets of the Company and personal
guarantees of two sponsoring directors of the Company.

These finances have been obtained against finance facility of Rs.200 million for
mid term working capital requirements of the Company. The facility tenor is two
years including six months grace period and is secured against first pari passu
charge over present and future fixed and current assets of the Company. The
finance facility carries profit at 3-months KIBOR + 2.50% per annum; the effective
profit rate during the year ranged from 22.70% to 25.10% (2023:17.48% to
24.63%) per annum. The outstanding balance of these finances is repayable in 1
semi annual instalments ending July, 2024.
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22.7

23. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS -

 

Gratuity

Significant actuarial assumptions 2024 2023

- discount rate 14.75% 16.25%
. .

- expected rate of growth per annum in 
future salaries 13.75% 20.0%

- mortality rates SLIC SLIC

2001-2005 2001-2005

- withdrawal rates Age-based Age-based

- retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

The movement in the present value of  2024 2023

defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Opening balance
            

100,467 104,794

Current service cost 25,405 21,138

Interest cost 14,664 12,634

Benefits paid (20,452) (32,267)

Remeasurements of obligation (1,485) (5,832)

Closing balance 118,599 100,467

Expense recognised in the statement 

of profit or loss

Current service cost 25,405 21,138

Interest cost 14,664 12,634

40,069 33,772

Charge for the year has been allocated 

to cost of sales.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

Amount recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of
defined benefit obligation at the reporting date:

These finances have been obtained by BCM from SM against aggregate limit of
Rs.50 million for the purpose of acquisition of plant and machinery. The facility
tenor is five years and is secured against title of assets in the name of SM,
registered charge of Rs.48.555 million over financed assets and personal
guarantee of Ex-Chief Executive of BCM. The finance facility carries profit at 3-
months KIBOR + 2.90% per annum; the effective profit rates during the year
ranged from 23.71% to 25.93% (2023: 16.49% to 24.98%) per annum. The
outstanding balance of these finances is repayable in 48 equal monthly
instalments ending April, 2025.

Setback 1 year

The future contribution rates of this scheme include allowance for deficit and
surplus. Projected unit credit method, based on the following significant
assumptions, is used for valuation:
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Remeasurement recognised in 2024 2023

other comprehensive income

Change in financial assumption 557 -

                

Experience adjustments 928 5,832

1,485 5,832

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Present value of 
defined benefit 

obligation 118,599 100,467 104,794 72,729 58,738

Experience 

adjustments on 

obligation (1,485) (5,832) 17,735 4,145 (11,275)

Increase Decrease 

Year-end sensitivity analysis:

Discount rate 1% 111,125     127,134        

Salary growth rate 1% 127,449     110,708        

23.1

23.2

2024 2023

24. DEFERRED TAXATION - Net Note

This is composed of the following:

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:

- accelerated tax depreciation allowances 341,343 389,556

- surplus on revaluation of property, 

plant and equipment 20.2 242,559 283,875

- lease liabilities 705 1,199

584,607 674,630

Deductible temporary differences arising 

in respect of:

- staff retirement benefits - gratuity (34,394) (29,426)

- provision for obsolete stores and spares (10,838) (10,839)

- minimum tax recoverable against normal tax

      charge in future years (176,705) (103,147)

(221,937) (143,412)

362,670 531,218

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation and experience
adjustments on obligation for five years is as follows:

Change in

assumption - - - Rupees in '000 - - -

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2024 is 7
years.

------------------- Rupees in '000 -------------------

Impact on defined benefit obligation

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

The expected contribution to defined benefit obligation for the year ending June
30, 2025 is Rs.39.870 million.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

75

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note 2024 2023

Creditors 122,467 79,714

Bills payable against imported raw material 247,922 57,514

Advance payments 25.1 39,343 184

Accrued expenses 25.2 306,602 205,851

Tax deducted at source 11,481 11,329

Sales tax payable 42,239 22,404

Gratuity payable to employees -

            

1,000

Due to Waqf-e-Kuli Khan 25.3 27,560 28,124

Security deposits repayable on 
demand - interest free 283 283

Others 2,169 15,277

800,066 421,680

25.1 These advances have been received against sale of land.

25.2

25.3

- Lt. General (Retd.) Ali Kuli - Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad
Khan Khattak

- Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak

- Dr. Shahin Kuli Khan Khattak

26. SHORT TERM FINANCES 2024 2023

Note

Secured 26.1 1,153,923 1,521,320

Un-secured (temporary bank overdrafts) 18,019 35,319

1,171,942 1,556,639

26.1

Facilities available for opening letters of credit and guarantee from NBP and BoK
aggregate Rs.625 million (2023: Rs.625 million) out of which facilities amounting
Rs.316.119 million (2023: Rs.450 million) remained unutilised at the year-end.
These facilities are secured against lien on import documents and the securities
as detailed in the preceding paragraph.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

Waqf-e-Kuli Khan (a Charitable Institution) is administered by the following
directors of the Company:

No amount was payable to Associated Companies at the end of current and
preceding years.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

Facilities from NBP were available upto January 31, 2024 whereas the facilities
from BoK were available upto December 31, 2023. The facilities available from
Bok and NBP have been renewed and the renewed facilities from BoK will be
available upto December 31, 2024 and from NBP upto January 31, 2025.

Short term finance facilities available from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) and
The Bank of Khyber (BoK) under mark-up arrangements aggregate Rs.1.608
billion (2023: Rs.1.608 billion) and are secured against pledge of raw materials &
finished goods and first pari passu charge on current & fixed assets of the
Company and personal guarantees of two sponsoring directors of the Company.
These facilities, during the year, carried mark-up at the rates ranging from 22.31%
to 25.02% (2023: 16.63% to 24.23%) per annum.
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26.2

2024 2023

27. CURRENT PORTION OF NON- Note

  CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities 21 2,022 1,439

Long term finances 22 158,062 158,284

160,084 159,723

28. LEVIES AND INCOME TAX

Opening balance 75,207 97,173

Add: provision made during the year:

current 28.2 73,559 75,207

prior year adjustment -            (3,184)

73,559 72,023

148,766 169,196

Less: payments / adjustments made against

completed assessments 75,207 93,989

73,559 75,207

28.1

28.2

28.3

28.4

Facility available from BAFL for issuance of guarantee favouring Sui Northern Gas
Pipelines Ltd. (SNGPL) amounts to Rs.75 million ( 2023:Rs.75 million); this facility
has been utilised to the tune of Rs.2.700 for issuance of bank guarantee favouring
SNGPL; balance facility remained unutilised as at June 30, 2024. This facility is
available upto November, 2024 and will be secured against lien on cash / TDR
placed with BAFL.

The Department, on October 05, 2015, for tax year 2015 has charged tax under
sections 161/236 G&H of the Ordinance amounting Rs.6.995 million; the
Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals - CIR(A) has decided the appeal on April
16, 2018 against the Company. The Company has filed further appeal on May 16,
2018 before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore - ATIR, which is
pending adjudication.

No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these financial statements as
provision for the current and preceding years represents tax payable under
section 113 ( Minimum tax on the income of certain persons) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance). 

Tax charged for the tax year 2014 at Rs.42.883 million on February 08, 2018 has

been deleted by the CIR(A) on June 23, 2018 and he has also partially set aside

various additions made by the Deputy Commissioner. The Company as well as

the Income Tax Department (the Department) have filed further appeals on July

12, 2018 on the point of set aside before the ATIR, which are pending

adjudication.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

Letter of credit / short term finance facility available from Bank Alfalah Ltd. (BAFL)
amounts to Rs.250 million; out of which facilities amounting Rs.116.302 million
remained unutilised at the year-end. This facility is available upto November, 2024
and is secured against lien over import documents, pledge of raw materials and
ranking charge on current and fixed assets of the Company.

Income tax returns of the Company have been filed upto the tax year 2023 i.e.
accounting year ended June 30, 2023.



JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

77

28.5

28.6

28.7

28.8

28.9

28.10

28.11

28.12

28.13

29. PREFERENCE SHARES REDEMPTION ACCOUNT 2024 2023

Amounts payable on: Note

- 7.5% redeemable cumulative

    preference shares 29.1 134 134

- 10% redeemable cumulative 

preference shares 29.2 1,057 1,057

1,191 1,191

The Department has charged tax on June 26, 2023 under section 122(5A) of the

Ordinance for tax year 2021 at Rs.130.185 million against which appeal has been

filed with CIR(A) Lahore. CIR(A) has remanded the case back to assessing

officer. However, the Company has filed an appeal with ATIR which is pending

adjudication.

As per the rectification order dated February 03, 2017, the Department has
charged tax under sections 161 / 205 of the Ordinance raising tax demands of
Rs.4.885 million for the tax year 2015 against which BCM has filed an appeal
on February 22, 2017 before the CIRA, Peshawar which is pending adjudication.

The Department, on October 03, 2016, has charged tax aggregating Rs.3.998

million under sections 161/205 of the Ordinance for the tax year 2012 against

which appeal has been filed on October 13, 2016 before the CIR(A), which is

pending adjudication.

The ATIR, during the financial year ended June 30, 2017 for the tax years 2004 to
2006, had cancelled all the assessments on October 05, 2016 made under
section 122(5A) of the Ordinance by the Commissioner Inland Revenue LTU,
Lahore and restored the original assessments under section 120(1) of the
Ordinance.

The ATIR has decided the appeal on February 21, 2017 for tax year 2007 and
remanded the case back to the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue for de novo
consideration.

The Department, on March 24, 2015, has charged tax under sections 161/236

G&H of the Ordinance for tax years 2014 and 2015 at Rs.12.936 million and

Rs.4.809 million respectively; the CIR(A) has decided the appeal on March 15,

2016 against the Company against which the Company has filed further appeal on

April 07, 2016 before the ATIR, which is pending adjudication.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

The Department has charged tax on June 21, 2023 under section 122(5A) of the

Ordinance for tax year 2017 at Rs.3.724 million against which appeal has been

filed with CIR(A) Lahore, which is pending adjudication.

TAX STATUS OF BABRI COTTON MILLS LTD. (BCM)

Income tax returns of BCM have been filed upto the tax year 2023 i.e. accounting
year ended June 30, 2023.

The CIR(A) has decided the appeal for the tax year 2011 in favour of the

Company on October 06, 2016 and demands of tax charged under sections

161/205 of the Ordinance aggregating Rs.5.632 million have been deleted. The

Company has filed for appeal effects with the Department on December 06, 2016,

which is under process. However, the Department has filed further appeal before

the ATIR on January 04, 2017. The case has been decided in fovor of the

Company vide order dated October 18, 2023.
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29.1

29.2

30. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

30.1

30.2

This represents the balance of total issue of 250,000 shares, which became
convertible at par into ordinary shares of the Company or redeemable in cash at
the option of the shareholders of the said class of shares after August 30, 1976.
The Company had redeemed 118,828 shares during the year 1976, which were
tendered for redemption in accordance with the terms of the issue.

These shares totalling 128,112 could not be redeemed during the preceding years
due to non-availability of adequate funds and incurrence of persistent losses. The
Company's profitability and availability of funds in the recent past had allowed the
management to redeem these shares fully as provided under section 85 of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.The Company, during the current year, had
redeemed no further shares and the opening balance of 13,435 shares was
outstanding as at June 30, 2024.

This represents the balance of total issue of 426,250 shares, which were
convertible at par into ordinary shares of the Company at the option of the
shareholders of the said class of shares during the period from October 01, 1977
to October 01, 1981. As per terms of the issue, the unconverted shares were to
be redeemed on October 01, 1982. However, 3,772 shares were converted into
ordinary shares of the Company after the year 1984 at the request of the
shareholders although the time for conversion as fixed by the Controller of Capital
Issues had expired on October 01, 1981. These shares are due for redemption at
par since October 01, 1982.

The Department, vide order dated January 24, 2018 under section 11(3) of the

Sales Tax Act, 1990 (the Act) has created demand of Rs.182.690 million for the

period July, 2011 to June, 2013 against which the Company has filed writ petition

before the Lahore High Court (LHC) on January 30, 2018, which has declared the

order passed by the Department illegal and void ab-initio on February 09, 2018.

The Department against order of the LHC has filed an appeal on March 27, 2018

before the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP), which is pending adjudication.

The Sales Tax Department (the Department), vide its judgment dated March 06,

2018, has created sales tax demands of Rs.5.978 million on account of

discrepancies pointed out by CREST for which appeal has been decided by the

Commissioner Inland Revenue [Appeals-CIR(A)] and remanded-back the issue to

the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue. The Company, however, has filed an

appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), Lahore against the

orders of CIR (A), which is pending adjudication. 

3,060 shares were converted into ordinary shares of the Company after the year
1976 at the option exercised by the shareholders.

As stated in the preceding note, the Company's profitability and availability of
funds in the recent past had allowed the management to redeem these shares
also. The Company, upto June 30, 2014, had redeemed 314,483 shares whereas
2,112 further shares were redeemed during the financial year ended June 30,
2017; 52 shares were redeemed during the financial year ended June 30, 2020.
The Company, during the year ended June 30, 2021, had further redeemed 162
shares. As at June 30, 2024 balance of 105,669 shares was outstanding.
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30.3

30.4 The Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) vide its judgment dated August 13, 2020

has declared the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 as valid

and constitutional. The SCP in its said judgment stated that the Cess under GIDC

Act, 2015 is applicable only to those consumers of natural gas, which on account

of their industrial or commercial dealings had passed on the GIDC burden to their

end customers/clients. 

In case of the Company, Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Ltd. (SNGPL), along with gas
bill for the month of August, 2020, has raised GIDC demands aggregating
Rs.380.957 million. The management, during the financial year ended June 30,
2017, has made GIDC provision amounting Rs.78.043 million relating to that year
in its books of account, however, the balance GIDC provisions aggregating
Rs.302.914 million have not been recognised in the books of account. 

In case of BCM, SNGPL, along with gas bill for the month of August, 2020, has
raised GIDC demands aggregating Rs.345.261 million against which provisions
have not been recognised in the books of account. 

The Department, vide order dated May 31, 2022, under section 11(3) of the Act

has created demand of Rs.1,360.689 million, which included further tax and

penalties for the period July, 2016 to June, 2019 against post refund audit. The

Company has filed appeal against the impugned assessment order with the

Commissioner (Appeals), who decided the appeal in favour of the Company and

deleted the whole demand vide order dated December 30, 2022. The Company as 

well as the Department have filed further appeals with ATIR, Lahore, which are

pending adjudication.

The Company and Babri Cotton Mills Ltd (BCM - merged with the Company on
February 04, 2022) have filed review petitions against the said judgment of SCP
for waiver of the full amount of GIDC cess on the ground that, being spinning
Units and producing raw materials for weaving sector, have not passed on the
GIDC burden to their customers. The SCP has dismissed the said review petitions
vide its judgment dated November 02, 2020; however, the SCP, in its said
judgment, has mentioned that the companies claiming any relief under the GIDC
Act, 2015 may approach the right forum. 

In February, 2021, the Company and BCM through the forum of the KP Textile
Mills Association have filed writ petitions before the PHC claiming non-applicability
of the GIDC Act, 2015 in the ambit of the exemption in line with the provision of
section 8(2) of the GIDC Act, 2015 and sought relief against the recovery of GIDC
instalment bills. The PHC issued stay order in March, 2021 'and restrained
SNGPL from taking any adverse action against the Companies. However, PHC,
vide its judgment dated June 15, 2022, has dismissed the petition filed by the KP
Textile Mills Association and Others, observing that while exercising jurisdiction
vested under article 199 of the Constitution, the Court can neither enter into
factual controversies nor decide disputed questions of facts. the PHC, however,
has allowed the Petitioners to approach A competent Court of law / forum having
jurisdiction in the matter, if they so advised.
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30.5

30.6 Guarantees aggregating Rs.177.7 million (2023: Rs.175 million) issued by
commercial banks on behalf of the Company in favour of SNGPL were
outstanding as at June 30, 2024.

After dismissal of the petition by the Peshawar High Court filed by KP Textile Mills

Association and Others, the Company and BCM, during July, 2022, have filed civil

suits before the Court of Senior Civil Judge, Peshawar praying the Court to

declare that the Company and BCM have not passed on the burden of GIDC to

end consumers and are entitled to the benefit / exemption under section 8 (2) of

the GIDC Act, 2015 as per the dicta laid down by the Supreme Court in civil

appeals / civil review petition and by the PHC in a writ petition. The Company and

BCM have further prayed that SNGPL be restrained from recovering GIDC and

disconnecting their gas supplies. The Trial Court has issued restraining orders in

favour of the Companies and has restrained SNGPL from the recovery of GIDC or

taking any other coercive action. The restraining order is still intact against

SNGPL.

An order has been passed by the Collector of Customs, Karachi dated November

11, 2020 creating a demand of Rs.19.223 million along with a penalty of Rs.500

thousand. The above order has been challenged by way of filing an appeal before

the Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi. Further, a stay order was also obtained

from the Sindh High Court by filing constitutional petition. During the current year,

the Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi has decided the case in favour of

Company.

The management, in light of the opinion of its legal council, maintains that since
the Company has not passed on the burden of GIDC to its consumers, it is not
liable to pay GIDC as it clearly falls within the ambit of the exemption in line with
section 8(2) of the GIDC Act, 2015.

SNGPL, following the Court's order, corrects gas bill of each month by removing
the GIDC amount and requests payment for the net bill amount only i.e., excluding
GIDC.

Additionally, para 42(iv) of the SCP's judgment dated August 13, 2020
categorically stated that: 

"The Federal government shall take all steps to commence work on the laying of
the North South pipeline within six months and on TAPI pipeline as soon as its
laying in Afghanistan reaches the stage where the work of laying pipeline on
Pakistan soil can conveniently start and on IP pipeline as soon as the sanctions
on Iran are no more an impediment in its laying. In case no work is carried out on
North-South pipeline within the prescribed time and for laying any of the two other
major pipelines (IP and TAPI) though the political conditions become conducive,
the purpose of levying Cess shall be deemed to have been frustrated and the
GIDC Act, 2015 would become permanently in-operational and considered dead
for all intents and purposes."

Since the work on IP (Iran-Pakistan Pipeline Project) and TAPI (Turkmenistan-
Afghanistan-Pakistan-India) gas pipelines did not commence within six months as
ordered by the SCP; therefore, the provisions of GIDC Act, 2015 regarding
recovery and applicability of GIDC are no longer applicable and enforceable. 
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2024 2023

30.7 Commitments against irrevocable 

letters of credit  outstanding at the 

year-end were for:

- raw materials -            158,255

30.8 Also refer contents of note 28.

31. SALES - Net

Yarn 7,064,310 7,128,715

Waste 1,515 38,857

 7,065,825 7,167,572

Less: sales tax 1,181,113 1,151,045

5,884,712 6,016,527

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -
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32. COST OF SALES 2024 2023

Note

Raw materials consumed 32.1 3,706,309 3,846,898

Packing materials consumed 100,583 95,287

Salaries, wages and benefits 32.2 745,932 661,836

Power and fuel 1,155,904 720,586
Stores and spares consumed 136,667 149,582
Repair and maintenance 15,452 17,035

Depreciation on operating 

fixed assets 5.7 157,950 161,202

Depreciation on right of use assets 5.11 275 213

Insurance 20,276 19,633

Others 25,136 23,369

6,064,484 5,695,641

Adjustment of work-in-process

Opening 165,325 147,471

Closing 10 (145,594) (165,325)

19,731 (17,854)

Cost of goods manufactured 6,084,215 5,677,787

Adjustment of finished goods

Opening stock 161,216 153,058

Closing stock 10 (336,148) (161,216)

(174,932) (8,158)

5,909,283 5,669,629

32.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock 1,138,839 1,522,385

Purchases 3,379,441 3,463,308

4,518,280 4,985,693

Less: closing stock 10 811,980 1,138,839

Raw materials issued 3,706,300 3,846,854

Cess on cotton consumed 9 44

3,706,309 3,846,898

32.2

33. DISTRIBUTION COST 2024 2023

Note

Salaries and benefits 33.1 26,773 21,726

Commission 42,780 31,786

Freight and handling 4,458 4,488

Gifts and samples 133 250

Others 672 827

74,816 59,077

33.1

These include Rs.40.069 million (2023: Rs.33.772 million) in respect of staff
retirement benefits - gratuity and Rs.9.710 million (2023: Rs.9.403 million) for
employees' provident fund contribution.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

These include Rs.1,390 thousand (2023: Rs.1,302 thousand) for employees'
provident fund contribution.
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34. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2024 2023

Note

Salaries and benefits 34.1 96,827 81,478

Printing and stationery 626 821

Travelling and conveyance - staff 646 817

Travelling - directors 310 270

Communication 1,501 1,599

Rent, rates and taxes 2,577 3,314

Entertainment expenses 1,018 966

Insurance 4,020 3,105

Vehicles' running and maintenance 8,934 8,752

Advertisement 202 569

Subscription 983 1,122

Repair and maintenance 2,898 2,540

Auditors' remuneration:

 - statutory audit 1,346 1,346

 - half yearly review 273 260

 - certification charges 24 22

 - out-of-pocket expenses 45 45

 - short provision for the preceding year 2 17

1,690 1,690
Legal and professional charges 

(other than Auditors) 4,477 3,452

Depreciation on operating fixed assets 5.7 7,407 5,680

Depreciation on right of use assets 5.11 1,366 1,058

Amortisation 6 260 260

Others 5,142 3,731

140,884 121,224

34.1

35. OTHER EXPENSES 2024 2023
Note

Receivable balances of cotton and 
store suppliers - written off 3,419 4,286

Debtors balances - written off 617 5,277

Letter of credit claims - written off -

            

2,895

Provision for impairment of 
trade debts - net 11.1 -

            

129

Loss on sale of operating fixed assets 5.8 38,618 -

                
42,654 12,587

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

These include Rs.5.025 million (2023: Rs.4.652 million) for employees' provident
fund contribution.
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36. OTHER INCOME 2024 2023

Note

Income from financial assets

Return on bank deposits 11,582 210

Income from non-financial assets

Excess  workers' welfare fund provision - reversed -

            

928

Unclaimed payable balances of cotton and 

store suppliers of prior years - written back 81,194 81,656

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets -

            

5,043

Provision for impairment for trade debts- net 57 -

                

92,833 87,837

37. FINANCE COST

Interest on lease liabilities 657 351

Mark-up on long term finances 56,379 63,328

Mark-up on short term finances 291,429 244,859

Bank charges 8,161 4,958

Inland-letters of credit discount charges 1,125 9,463

Interest on workers' (profit) 

participation fund -            1,981

357,751 324,940

38. LEVIES AND INCOME TAXATION

38.1 Minimum Tax-levy

 - for the year 28 73,559 75,207

 - for prior years 28 -
            

(3,184)

73,559 72,023

38.1.1

2024 2023

38.2 Income taxes

Deferred tax (Origination and reversal of 
temporary differences) 142,726 94,433

39. LOSS PER SHARE 

There is no dilutive effect on loss per 

share of the Company, which is based on:

  Loss after taxation attributable to 

     ordinary shareholders (467,584) (80,276)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year 6,915,822 6,915,822

 Loss per share - basic (67.61) (11.61)

------- Rupees ------- 

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

This represent minimum tax payable under section 113 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, representation levy in terms of requirement  of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

(Number of shares)
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

2024 2023

40.1 Financial instruments by category

Financial assets - At amortised cost

Security deposits 14,598

       

14,346

          

Loans to employees 900

            

1,236

            

Advances to employees 1,224

         

1,588

            

Trade debts 4,646

         

62,857

          

Due from an Associated Company 60

              

-

                

Other receivables 1,923

         

622

               

Bank balances 10,508

       

40,276

          

33,859

       

120,925

        

Financial liabilities - At amortised cost

Lease liabilities 2,022
         

3,473
            

Long term finances 158,686
     

296,975
        

Trade and other payables 707,003
     

387,763
        

Unclaimed dividends 2,715
         

2,715
            

Accrued mark-up 76,387       1,017            

Short term finances 1,171,942  1,556,639     

Redeemable preference shares 1,191         1,191            

2,119,946  2,249,773     

40.2 Financial Risk Factors

40.3 Market risk

(a) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to

transactions entered into in foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to

currency risk on raw materials denominated in CN¥ and U.S. $. The Company's

exposure to foreign currency risk for CN¥ and U.S. $ is as follows:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Risk management is carried-out by the Company's finance department under
policies approved by the board of directors. The Company's finance department
evaluates financial risks based on principles for overall risk management as well
as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity, provided by the board of
directors.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk

(including interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. The Company's overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Company's financial performance.

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -
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The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

2024 2023 2024 2023

CN¥ to Rupee 38.43 266.88 38.53 319.76

U.S. $ to Rupee 287.63 246.53 278.80 285.99

Sensitivity analysis

2024 2023

Effect on loss for the  year:

U.S.$ to Rupee 16,143 5,748

CN¥ to Rupee 9,366 -
                

(b) Interest rate risk

2024 2023 2024 2023

% %

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances 12.25 to 19.50 3,666 26,565

Variable rate instruments

Effective rate

As at June 30, 2024, if Rupee had strengthened by 10% against U.S.$ with all

other variables held constant, loss before taxation for the current year would have

been lower by the amount shown below mainly as a result of net foreign exchange

gain on translation of foreign currency financial liabilities:

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

Average rate Reporting date rate

Carrying amount

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. At the
reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial
instruments is as follows:

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

18 to 20.50 

Rupees CN¥ U.S.$

Funded

Bills payable 247,922 2,431 579

Total exposure 247,922 2,431 579

Funded

Bills payable 57,514 -

            

201

Unfunded

Outstanding letters of credit 158,255 -

            

553

Total exposure 215,769 -

            

754

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -
2024

2023
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Financial liabilities 2024 2023 2024 2023

Long term % %

finances 17.48 to 25.26 158,686 296,975

Lease finances 18.85 to 23.85 2,022 3,473

Short term 

finances 16.63 to 24.23 1,153,923 1,521,320

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

(c) Price risk

40.4 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged
in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause
their abilities to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the
relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

23.85 to 24.25

22.31 to 25.02

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company
attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions
with specific counterparties and continually assessing the credit worthiness of
counterparties.

22.70 to 25.93 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those
arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuer or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not
exposed to any significant price risk.

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect statement of profit or loss of the Company.

Effective rate Carrying amount
- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts and balances with banks. To manage
exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit
reviews taking into account the customer's financial position, past experience and
other relevant factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are
obtained from certain parties. The management has set a maximum credit period
of 10 days to reduce the credit risk. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the
counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings.

At June 30, 2024, if interest rate on variable rate financial liabilities had been 1%

higher / lower with all other variables held constant, loss before taxation for the
year would have been higher / lower by Rs.13,146 thousand (2023: Rs.18,218

thousand) mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on variable rate

financial liabilities. 
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Exposure to credit risk

2024 2023

Security deposits 14,598 14,346

Trade debts 4,646 62,857

Trade deposits 2,700 75,000

Due from an Associated Company 60 -

                   

Bank balances 10,508 40,276

32,512 192,479

All the trade debts at the reporting date represent domestic parties.

The ageing of trade debts at the year-end was as follows:

Not past due 1,409 61,621

Past due 3,237 1,236

4,646 62,857

Bank Agency

United Bank Ltd. A1+ AAA JCR

Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd. A1+ AA+ PACRA

National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA 

The Bank of Khyber A-1 A+ VIS

Bank Alfalah Ltd. A1+ AAA PACRA

Meezan Bank Ltd. A1+ AAA JCR

Faysal Bank Ltd. A1+ AA PACRA

40.5 Liquidity risk

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

Based on past experience, the Company's management believes that no further

impairment loss allowance is necessary in respect of trade debts as there are
reasonable grounds to believe that the amounts will be realised in short course of

time.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date along with comparative
is tabulated below:

Long term 

rating

The credit quality of the Company's major bank balances can be assessed with
reference to the external credit ratings as follows:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as
possible, to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit facilities. The
Company's treasury department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
keeping committed credit lines available.

Short term 

rating
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Lease liabilities 2,022 2,251 -

                

Long term finances 158,686 158,406 676

Trade and other payables 707,003 707,003 -

                

Unclaimed dividends 2,715 2,715 -

                

Accrued mark-up 76,387 76,387 -

                

Short term finances 1,171,942 1,445,017 -
                

Redeemable preference shares 1,191 1,191 -
                

2,119,946 2,392,970 676

Lease liabilities 3,473 2,046 2,251

Long term finances 296,975 288,350 151,671

Trade and other payables 387,763 387,763 -                

Unclaimed dividends 2,715 2,715 -                

Accrued mark-up 1,017 1,017 -                
Short term finances 1,556,639 1,917,145 -                
Redeemable preference shares 1,191 1,191 -                

2,249,773 2,600,227 153,922

41. MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Contractual 

cash flows 

having 

maturity of 

less than 

one year

Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented
below:

Contractual 

cash flows 

having 

maturity of 

upto five years
2024

2023

 - - - Rupees in thousand - - -

Carrying 

amount

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

The management, as at April 1, 2024, had engaged an independent external

Valuer to carry out valuation of plant & machinery and generators. Selection

criteria included market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether

professional standards were maintained. When measuring the fair value of an

asset, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the

circumstances and uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values

are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs

used in the valuation techniques as follows:

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been
determined on the basis of mark-up rates effective at the respective year-ends.
The rates of mark-up have been disclosed in the respective notes to these
financial statements.
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42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

2024 2023

Lease liabilities 2,022 3,473

Long term finances 158,686 296,975

Short term finances 1,171,942 1,556,639

Cash and bank balances (12,372) (40,639)

Net debt 1,320,278 1,816,448

Share capital 69,158 69,158

Treasury shares (3,410) (3,410)

Reserves

- capital 5,031,515 5,133,937

- revenue 938,771 1,368,444

Equity 6,036,034 6,568,129

Capital 7,356,312 8,384,577

Gearing ratio (Net debt / (Net debt + Equity)) 17.95% 21.66%

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company also
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt, mark-up bearing long
term finances, lease liabilities, mark-up bearing short term finances less cash and
bank balances. Capital signifies equity as shown in the statement of financial
position plus net debt. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 is
as follows:

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability
to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders, benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital
base to support the sustained development of its business.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair
value on a recurring basis, the management recognises transfers between levels
of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
change has occurred. There were no transfers between different levels of fair
values mentioned above.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement.
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43. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND 
EXECUTIVES

43.1

43.2

44. TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 
AND RELATED PARTIES

44.1

44.2

Meeting fees of Rs.1,350 thousand (2023: Rs.1,640 thousand) were also paid to
five (2023: six) non-working directors and one working director during the year.

The Company's shareholders vide a special resolution dated December 24, 2021
have enhanced the previous approved limit of Rs.12.500 million to Rs.25.000
million on account of transactions among Associated Companies of the Group,
which fall under normal trade transactions for sale and purchase of store and
spare parts, purchase of raw materials and certain other related transactions not
falling under the purview of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act).
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have been authorized
jointly by members of Company in their annual general meeting held on October
17, 2022 to approve all transactions carried out and to be carried out in normal
course of business with Associated Companies / related parties during year ended
June 30, 2024.

Chief executive and all the executives are provided with free use of residential
telephones and the Company maintained cars. Executives are also provided with
free housing facility.

Dr. Shahin Kuli Khan Khattak, a non-executive director with effect from July 01,

2022, was appointed as Executive Director Public Relations (EDPR) at a gross

salary of Rs.600,000 per month in addition to utilities and other perquisites. The

salary and other expenses of EDPR are being shared with five other Associated

Companies on a pro rata basis. However, after her appointment as CEO of The

Universal Insurance Company Ltd., in the month of November 2023, the sharing

of expenses has been stopped.

The Company, Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd. and Rahman Cotton Mills Ltd.

(Associated Companies), on January 01, 2023, have entered into a lease rental

agreement with the Executive Director Finance & Production (EDFP) whereby

property owned by EDFP situated at Tufail Road, Lahore has been rented at

monthly rent of Rs.465,000.The rent and utilities are being shared by the

Company and above mentioned Associated Companies on a pro rata basis.

44.3

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Managerial remuneration 6,336 6,336 500 1,200 162,845 149,911

Bonus / ex-gratia -

           

434

          

-

           

-

           

-

           

9,104

Retirement benefits 528

          

528

          

-

           

-

           

12,300

     

11,214

Leave salary 476

          

477

          

-

           

-

           

12,270

     

11,006

Medical 1,970

       

1,138

       

-

           

-

           

9,625

       

3,038

Utilities 428

          

516

          

10

            

28

            

3,398

       

2,003

9,738 9,429 510 1,228 200,438 186,276

No. of persons    1 1 1 1 17 16

Particulars
Chief Executive Executives

-------------------------------- Rupees in  '000 ------------------------------

Director
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44.5

44.6

Material transactions with related parties during the year were as follows:

Mark-up on Associated Companies' balances has not been accrued during the
current and preceding years as the Company has executed no such transactions
attracting mark-up accrual. 

Maximum aggregate debit balance of the Associated Companies at any month-
end during the year was Rs. 2.434 million (2023: Rs.22.899 million).

The related parties of the Company comprise of Associated Companies (on the
basis of common directorship), its directors, key management personnel and
employees' provident fund. The Company in the normal course of business carries-
out transactions with various related parties. There were no transactions with key
management personnel other than under the terms of employment. Amounts due
to / from them are disclosed in the relevant notes. The transactions with related
parties are made at normal market prices.

2024 2023

Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd. Associated Expenses recovered 437 240

Company Salaries & benefits recovered 3,484 2,354

Sale of yarn -                4,128

Rahman Cotton Mills Ltd. -do- Expenses recovered -                126

Gammon Pakistan Ltd. Rent paid -                242

Ghandhara Automobiles Ltd. -do- Salaries & benefits recovered 3,484 2,354

Expenses recovered 398 366
Purchase of vehicles -

                
37,074

Ghandhara Industries Ltd. -do- Salaries & benefits recovered 3,484 2,354

Expenses recovered 398 366

Purchase of vehicles -
                

11,087

The Universal Insurance -do- Salaries & benefits 

Company Ltd. - recovered 3,484 2,354

- paid 686 1,590

Expenses recovered 240 240

Ghandhara Tyre & Rubber

Company Ltd. -do- Expenses recovered -

                

126

Key management personnel Remuneration and other benefits 191,247 178,318

Other related parties

Staff retirement fund

provident fund 40,083 35,555

Executive Director Finance 
& Production Lease rental (payable) / paid (1,023) 1,860

Contribution paid to employees' 

 Rupees in '000

-do-

Name 
Nature of 

relationshi
Nature of transaction

92
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45. OPERATING SEGMENT

45.1 Yarn sales represent 99.98% (2023: 99.46%) of the total sales of the Company.

45.2 All of the Company's sales relate to customers in Pakistan.

45.3

45.4

46. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION Note 2024 2023

Spindles installed 46.2 98,224 101,320

Rotors installed 600 600

Shifts worked 1,093 1,094

Spindles / rotors shifts worked 74,343,760

Installed capacity at 20's count on the basis 
of shifts worked 41,741,927

Actual production of yarn of all counts 5,863,616 6,504,731

Actual production converted into 20's count 27,838,606

46.1

46.2

 
47. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2024 2023

Number of permanent employees as at June 30, 1,074

         

1,275

            Average number of permanent employees 
during the year 1,163 1,371

 47.1

23,442,708

41,347,151

63,036,998

All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2024 are located in
Pakistan.

------ Numbers ------

The Company does not have transactions with any customer which amount to
10% or more of its sales.

----KGs.----

---- Numbers ----

It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in textile industry since it
fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as count of yarn spun,
spindles' speed, twist per inch and raw materials used, etc. It also varies
according to the pattern of production adopted in a particular year.

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable 
segment.

Due to closure of the production capacity excess  workforce  of  the  Company
has been permanently laid-off during the current financial year.

During the current financial year, 40,080 spindles have remained closed, as the

management reduced production because of frequent increase in gas & electricity

tariffs and also due to non-availability of raw materials due to the import embargo

imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan to save the dwindling foreign exchange. 



JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

94

48. PROVIDENT FUND RELATING DISCLOSURES

49. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS 

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

50. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

51. GENERAL

These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 21, 2024
by the board of directors of the Company.

Investments out of the provident fund have been made in accordance with the
requirements of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated
for this purpose.

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever

necessary, for the purpose of comparison; however, no material re-arrangements

and re-classifications have been made in these financial statements.

---------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------

Balance as at June 30, 2022 1,091 322,810 1,346,760 52,215 1,722,876

Changes from financing activities

Finances obtained net of repayments 2,382 (25,835) 209,879 -
             

186,426

Finance cost paid -
             

-
             

-
             

(371,180) (371,180)

2,382 (25,835) 209,879 (371,180) (184,754)

Other changes

Mark-up expense for the year -             -             -             319,982 319,982

Balance as at June 30, 2023 3,473 296,975 1,556,639 1,017 1,858,104

Changes from financing activities 

Finances repayments (1,451) (138,289) (384,697) -             (524,437)

Finance cost paid -
             

-
             

-
             

(274,220) (274,220)

(1,451) (138,289) (384,697) (274,220) (798,657)

Other changes

Mark-up expense for the year -
             

-
             

-
             

349,590 349,590

Balance as at June 30, 2024 2,022 158,686 1,171,942 76,387 1,409,037

Short term 

finances

Accrued 

mark-up 
Total

Lease 

liabilities

Long term 

finances

Lt. Gen. Retd. 
Ali Kuli Khan Khattak

Chief Executive 
Amin-ur-Rasheed

Chief Financial Officer 

             

Maj. Gen. (Retd)
Saeed Ahmed Wahla

Director
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  Saturday, the

October 26, 2024 at 11:00 a.m., and at any adjournment thereof at registered office 
of the company Habibabad, Kohat.

2024

Janana De Malucho Mills Limited

 Habibabad, Kohat. not later

Annual

50/-

Signature

C.N.I.C

Signature

C.N.I.C

I/We
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